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Mission Statement
Our mission is to be a catalyst for the development 
of a dynamic small to medium sized business 
sector through the provision of non-traditional 
financing instruments and professional expertise to 
businesses in the productive sectors, with strong 
profit making and growth potential.

Guiding Philosophy
Enterprise Growth Fund Limited is committed to 
fostering the growth of young, dynamic Barbadian 
fi rms with superior entrepreneurial talent.

Corporate Profi le



5

Board of 
Directors
The business of Enterprise 
Growth Fund Limited (EGFL) is 
conducted under the oversight 
of the Board of Directors. 
As of December 31, 2014 
EGFL’s Board of Directors was 
composed of the 8 members 
shown. 

Principal Activities
On January 2, 1998 Enterprise 
Growth Fund Limited (EGFL) 
commenced operations as a 
limited liability company to provide 
venture capital, advisory services 
and technical assistance to its 
client companies in the small and 
medium sized enterprise (SME) 
sector. 

Within a few years of its inception, 
EGFL’s core activities evolved 
to include fund management 
services to a number of dedicated, 
sector-specifi c Funds established 
by the Government of Barbados 
to provide fi nancing to assist with 
the retooling of the productive 
sectors of the economy. 

These developments have 
enabled EGFL to cater to a wider 
cross-section of businesses in 
fulfi lling its mandate of providing 
developmental fi nance to the 
critical SME sector.

From Top Left:
Terrence Thornhill (Chairman), 
Richard Matthews (Deputy Chairman), 
Timothy Simmons, Horace Cobham, 
Dr. Patricia Downes-Grant, John Cole, 
Peter Whitehall and Michael Mayers.
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Chairman’s 
Statement
Introduction
Enterprise Growth Fund Limited 
(EGFL) continued to perform 
positively during 2014 and 
recorded a profi t of $746,000.  
Signifi cantly, this achievement 
marks eleven unbroken years 
of profi tability and refl ects the 
soundness of our corporate 
governance and investment 
policies over the years.  This 
has enabled EGFL to mitigate 
the impact of the prolonged 
economic slowdown and has 
allowed us to retain the position 
as the number one development 
fi nance institution, in Barbados, 
serving small and medium sized 
enterprises (SMEs).

Several of our clients are challen-
ged by declining revenues and 
cash fl ows and as a consequence, 
they have struggled to honour 
their commitments. Those clie-
nts with high overheads and 
signifi cant debt found it more 
diffi cult to manage, since they 
had less fl exibility to reduce costs 
to match decreasing revenues.  
We will continue to assist these 
clients wherever possible through 
technical assistance and debt 
restructuring.

EGFL also encouraged its clients 
to explore new strategies and 
approaches to manage and 
operate their businesses so as 
to enhance sustainability and 
promote growth.  Some clients 

have successfully shortened 
their cash cycles by selling 
directly to consumers instead of 
to intermediaries. Others have 
sought to enhance their revenues 
in the local and export markets 
by improving their promotional 
and branding activities, or by 
offering enhanced products and 
services by utilising more effi cient 
technology. Therefore, while 
economic conditions remain 
challenging, some clients have 
sought to realign their business 
models in order to remain 
competitive. 

In 2013, EGFL factored 

$300,000 in receivables owed 
by government departments and 
statutory corporations under the 
Central Bank’s Trade Receiv-
ables Liquidity Facility. Following 
this reasonably successful 
performance EGFL fi nanced a 
further $400,000 for the SMEs in 
2014.  As we continue to sensitise 
our clients and other operators 
of the importance of this facility 
in managing their cash fl ow, we 
anticipate that it will be utilised 
to factor even more receivables 
in 2015 as businesses become 
more comfortable with the 
concept.  
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Economic Review
The muted performance of the 
economy continued in 2014, as 
real growth was estimated at 
0.3%.  Growth was concentrated 
in the non-traded sector as the 
output from the traded sector 
remained stagnant.  Mining and 
quarrying contributed to the 
positive performance in the non-
traded sector, which expanded 
by an estimated 21% as a result 
of an approximate 1% increase in 
construction activity and greater 
demand in the export market for 
quarrying products.

Tourism output expanded by 
an estimated 1% in 2014, after 
registering declines in the three 
previous years.  Long stay visitors 
increased by 1% and there was 
an increase in the length of stay, 
compared to 2013.  Barbados’ 
most important source market, 
the UK, saw a 10% increase in 
arrivals while the US and Canadian 
markets experienced declines 
of 3% and 4% respectively.  The 
trend within the regional source 
market was also negative as 
arrivals from Trinidad and other 
Caricom markets decreased by 
12% and 9% respectively. 

The consolidation measures 
implemented to reduce the 
fi scal defi cit were reported to be 
bearing fruit as the fi scal defi cit 
as at December 2014 was $149 
million lower than that of 2013.  
Furthermore, gross public sector 
debt at the end of 2014 was 
estimated to be 107.7% of GDP, 
which was on par with that of 
2013, while interest payments 
consumed 27.4% of Government 
revenues, as they did in 2013.   

Another benefi t of the consoli-
dation programme was a decline 
in demand for foreign exchange.  
To this end reserves declined by 
$92 million in 2014 compared to 
a drop of $313.5 million for 2013.
These reserves, which stood at 
$1.05 billion at December 31, 
2014, represented 14.5 weeks of 
import cover, compared to $1.14 
billion and 15.6 weeks of import 
cover for 2013.  

Job losses as a result of 
Government’s fi scal consolid-
ation programme were mainly 
responsible for an increase in the 
average annual unemployment 
rate of 12.5% at the end of 
September 2014 compared to 
11.2% at the end of September 
2013. Inflationary pressures 
remained benign and measured 
1.7% at the end October 2014.  

The appetite for loan fi nancing 
continued to be weak as the loan 
to deposit ratio declined slightly 
from 71.2% at the third quarter of 
2013 to 70.3% at the end of third 
quarter of 2014.  Consequently, 
liquidity remained high.  The ratio 
of non-performing loans within 
the banking sector has started 
to increase again, moving from 
11.3% at the third quarter, 2013 
to 12.2% for the corresponding 
period of 2014. 

Performance Review
The resurgence in approvals 
and disbursements witnessed 
in 2013 stalled as the period 
under review was marked by 
very limited funding activity.  
To this end, approvals across 
EGFL and the Funds Under 
Management dropped to almost 
a quarter of that of the prior 

year to register $3.49 million 
while disbursements, at $9.78 
million, were less than half of the 
$23.14 million achieved in 2013.  
Approvals and disbursements 
were again concentrated in the 
renewable energy and tourism 
sectors.    

In contrast to 2013 when the 
Agricultural Development Fund 
(ADF) generated comprehensive 
income of $184,000, the fi nancial 
performance of the Fund 
deteriorated to register a net loss 
of $363,000 in 2014.  This loss is 
attributed to loan loss provisions 
and a 46% decline in revenue.   
During the period under review, 
the ADF approved one loan 
in the amount of $400,000, 
compared with six approvals 
totalling $701,000 in 2013. Loan 
disbursements recorded for 2013 
and 2014 measured $501,000 
and $351,000, respectively.  
During 2014, $794,000 in grants 
was disbursed, compared to 
$13.61 million in 2013.  There 
were no capital injections to the 
Fund in 2014.

In view of encouraging demand 
for the Energy Smart Fund’s 
(ESF) technical assistance 
and loan facilities in 2013, the 
Fund witnessed an equally 
strong performance in 2014. 
The Smart Fund Technical 
Committee approved $217,000 
for 13 grants under the Technical 
Assistance Facility, a creditable 
increase when compared to 
the prior period’s 7 approvals 
totalling $150,000. Additionally, 
7 loans totalling $1.5 million were 
approved under the ESF.  

During the period under 
review, the two retail partners 
of the Pilot Consumer Finance 
Facility commenced offering 
cash rebates on approved 
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energy efficient appliances. 
Consequently, reimbursements 
totalling $64,400 were granted 
under this sub-component by the 
end of 2014 and EGFL envisions 
even greater activity within the 
forthcoming months based on 
the positive initial response. The 
Evaluation Committee approved 
one Smart Fund Partner (SFP) 
application, thereby increasing 
the total number of ratified SFPs 
to eleven.  

Though unforeseen circumstanc-
es stymied the planned launch 
of the Energy Efficient Lighting 
Distribution Facility during 
2014, it was officially launched 
subsequent to the year end.  
Promotional activities have been 
initiated to ensure the public 
is fully aware of the benefits of 
using energy efficient light bulbs 
and to stimulate greater usage. 
The viability of energy efficient 
and renewable energy solutions 
has been generally accepted by 
businesses and households alike. 
Therefore, as the island seeks to 
reduce its carbon foot-print and 
dependency on imported fossil 
fuels, it is envisioned that the ESF 
will continue to play a pivotal role 
in this thrust. 

The Industrial, Investment and 
Employment Fund’s (IIEF) finan-
cial performance remained below 
par in 2014, when the Fund 
registered a marginal net loss 
of $14,000 compared to a loss 
of $67,000 recorded in 2013. 
There were no loan approvals 
during 2014 but $3,000 was 
disbursed due to an outstanding 
commitment, thereby bringing 
total disbursements from this 
Fund since inception to $18.41 
million. 

During 2014, the Innovation Fund 
had no approvals but continued 

to fund the Prime Minister’s 
Award for Innovation which 
encourages entrepreneurship in 
non-traditional fields.  The Fund 
recorded a loss of $90,000 for 
2014 and disbursed $19,000, 
based on prior commitments.  
This Fund has approved 24 
projects totalling $3.87 million 
since inception in various sectors 
including the cultural industries, 
information technology and food 
processing.  

The Small Hotels Investment 
Fund (SHIF) did not escape 
the fall-out from the economic 
climate during 2014.  Several 
clients are still experiencing 
difficulties in maintaining regular 
loan payments and as a result, a 
number of requests for moratoria 
on payments were received.  
No new loan applications were 
forthcoming but disbursements 
totalled $960,000 for outstanding 
commitments. Against this 
backdrop, the Fund recorded a 
loss of $949,000.  However, given 
the product renewal cycle in the 
industry and the confidence of 
some operators in the initial signs 
of a turnaround in the sector, 
EGFL believes there will be an 
increase in demand for funding in 
the periods ahead.  

There were no new loan approvals 
for the Tourism Loan Fund (TLF) 
mirroring the performance of 
most of the other Funds under 
management. However, loan 
disbursements totalling $2.0 
million were recorded as a result 
of prior approvals. The financial 
performance of the TLF during 
2014 was commendable, as 
net income of $1.21 million was 
recorded, partly as a result of a 
change in accounting policy.  This 
compares to a profit of $360,000 
registered in the prior year. A 

number of the Fund’s clients have 
expressed optimism following 
an upswing in occupancy levels 
during the winter season and it is 
envisioned that this buoyancy, as 
noted above, should provide the 
impetus to re-energise activity 
within this critical sector.  

Summary and Financial 
Outlook for 2015
Government has reported that 
implementation of its fiscal 
consolidation programme has 
achieved the targets of reducing 
the fiscal deficit and stemming 
the decline in foreign reserves.  
Activity within the private sector 
however, remained sluggish and 
generally levels of investments 
have reduced.   Consequently, 
EGFL and its Funds under 
Management saw substantially 
reduced levels of applications, 
approvals and disbursements 
during 2014

In the midst of these challenges 
there is some ray of hope.  
After an encouraging start to 
the adoption of renewable 
energy and energy efficiency 
technologies in 2013, the 
business community remained 
keenly interested in the ESF’s 
financing options during 2014.  
As word spreads on the benefits 
of investing in energy efficiency 
and photovoltaics, growth in 
this area should continue once 
the regulatory framework keeps 
pace with the requirements of 
this sector.  Attractive financing 
options, fiscal incentives, foreign 
exchange savings and abundant 
sunshine have coalesced to 
provide the impetus for this 
nascent sector.  The hope is that 
it can develop into a stable and 
substantial economic contributor 
well into the future and the ESF 
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is primed to play a crucial role in 
this development.   

The generally upbeat mood 
surrounding the 2014 winter 
season is a positive sign for 
the country and EGFL’s Funds 
under Management, particularly 
the SHIF and the TLF.  The 
increase in tourist arrivals 
largely stemmed from better 
economic performance in our 
main source markets and the 
hope is that industry players 
will take advantage of promised 
tax incentives to provide more 
competitive offerings in order to 
expand arrivals and stimulate 
greater spending.  

Once the economic recovery 
continues to take hold in the 
metropolitan economies of the 
North Atlantic and our foreign 
exchange earning sectors can be 
competitive, the recovery which 
the island eagerly awaits should 
follow.  EGFL looks forward to 
this improvement and to financing 
the SMEs which stand to benefit 
from the turnaround.  

EGFL’S Community Outreach
As part of our corporate and 
social responsibility, EGFL is 
committed to contributing to the 
development of the communities 
in which it does business.  During 
the year, we gave financial 
contributions to a number of 
organisations to support worthy 
causes, charitable activities and 
other initiatives to enhance the 
wellbeing of our communities.

Our outreach programmes also 
extended to educational institu-
tions and in this regard we have 
adopted two schools at the       
primary and secondary levels in 
the surrounding districts of our 

business operation. We chose 
St. Mary’s Primary School and 
Ellerslie Secondary School for 
our adoption initiative. During 
the year Ellerslie Secondary 
School was the recipient of 
a used but efficient and well 
maintained photocopier. This 
donation was greatly appre-
ciated by the school which 
has a roll of 1004 students.  
In the coming year 2015, we 
intend to continue to give fi-
nancial support to St. Mary’s 
Primary School and Ellerslie 
Secondary School with a view 
to making a difference in their 
developmental programmes 
and activities. 

The challenges facing some 
students to cover university 
tuition fees have prompted 
us to establish a scholarship 
programme. To this end, 
EGFL has partnered with the 
University of the West Indies, 
Cave Hill Campus to create 
a scholarship programme 
that will enable two deserving 
students, who are pursuing 
studies in Economics and 
Business Finance, to benefit 
from $3,000 each in tuition 
assistance. In addition to 
providing financial assistance 
to subsidise the costs of 
their undergraduate studies, 
we have agreed to engage 
the students in an Internship 
Program at EGFL during 
the summer period. In the 
upcoming year, EGFL will 
expand its alliance with the 
University by facilitating a 
job attachment for a student 
to undertake a practicum 
in the partial fulfilment of 
the requirements for the MSc 

Banking and Finance degree.  
This initiative is expected to 
commence in the 2015 academic 
year.

Additionally, in 2015 we also   
intend to support some of  
the challenged and special 
needs students in the community 
by assisting two challenged 
students attending the Dereck 
Smith Vocational Centre. We 
hope that by extending our 
community outreach and finan-
cial support to the Centre we 
will provide opportunities and 
encouragement for students to 
develop their talents and skills at 
this institution.

Acknowledgements
I wish to express my gratitude 
to our clients for their continued 
support, to my fellow Directors 
for their wise counsel and to the 
management and staff for their 
sterling efforts during 2014. 

Terrence A. Thornhill 
Chairman
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KPMG 
Hastings 
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Barbados 

P. O. Box 690C 
Bridgetown, Barbados 

Telephone (246) 434 3900 
Fax (246) 427 7123 
e-Mail info@kpmg.bb 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders  
Enterprise Growth Fund Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Enterprise Growth Fund Limited, which comprise 
the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2014, and the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and the statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Enterprise Growth Fund Limited as at December 31, 2014, its financial performance and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Chartered Accountants
Bridgetown, Barbados 
May 29, 2015

2 
KPMG, a Barbados partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of 
Independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”) a Swiss entity. 
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended December 31, 2014
with comparative figures for 2013

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

Notes 2014 2013
restated

Revenue
Management fees 17 $ 2,678,370 2,749,068
Evaluation and commitment fees 11,660 69,140
Investment income 639,051 553,083
Interest on short term deposits 132,850 166,279
Other 13,142 12,568

3,475,073 3,550,138

Expenses
Operating 2,440,256 2,389,431
Depreciation 10 278,128 269,606
Gain on disposal of assets - (8,500)
Loan provision 7 140,709 1,009
Investment recoveries (139,166) -

2,719,927 2,651,546

Net income 755,146 898,592

Other Comprehensive (Loss)/Income
Re-measurement of defined benefit pension plan (8,797) 38,380

Net income and other comprehensive income $ 746,349 936,972

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

4
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

For the year ended December 31, 2014
with comparative figures for 2013

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

Other
Class A Class B Comprehensive Accumulated

Notes Shares Shares Income Surplus Total

Balances, December 31, 2012 $ 3,500,000 13,872,109 154,943 6,679,608 24,206,660

Prior year adjustment 23 - - - (362,121) (362,121)

Balances, January 1, 2013
As restated 3,500,000 13,872,109 154,943 6,317,487 23,844,539

Dividends paid 15 - - - (105,000) (105,000)

Net income and
Other comprehensive income
As restated - - 38,380 898,592 936,972

Balances, December 31, 2013
As restated $ 3,500,000 13,872,109 193,323 7,111,079 24,676,511

Dividends paid 15 - - - (105,000) (105,000)

Net income and
Other comprehensive income - - (8,797) 755,146 746,349

Balances, December 31, 2014 $ 3,500,000 13,872,109 184,526 7,761,225 25,317,860

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

5
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended December 31, 2014
with comparative figures for 2013

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

Notes 2014 2013
restated

Operating Activities
Net income $ 746,349 936,972

Adjustments for:
Interest on short term deposits (132,850) (166,279)
Depreciation 278,128 269,606
Gain on disposal of fixed assets - (8,500)
Deferred shareholder-grant (37,925) (60,405)
Investment recoveries (139,166) -
Loan loss provision 7 140,709 1,009

Operating profit before working capital changes 855,245 972,403

Increase in accounts receivable and prepayments (468,708) (475,658)
Decrease (increase) in loans receivable 539,748 (948,336)
(Increase) decrease in due from related party (11,787) 40,919
Increase in accounts payable 30,218 25,999
Increase in gratuities payable 40,868 61,408
Increase in pension asset (48,612) (82,547)
(Decrease) increase in due to related party (13,801) 13,801

923,171 (392,011)
Interest received on short term deposits 137,335 177,345

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,060,506 (214,666)

Investing Activities
Sale of investments 64,971 1,630,891
Sale of fixed assets - 8,500
Purchase of fixed assets 10 (185,952) (127,222)

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (120,981) 1,512,169

Financing Activities
Dividends paid 15 (105,000) (105,000)

Net cash used in financing activities (105,000) (105,000)

Increase in cash and short term deposits 834,525 1,192,503

Cash and short term deposits – beginning of year 5,832,519 4,640,016

Cash and short term deposits – end of year $ 6,667,044 5,832,519

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

6
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

1. Incorporation and Principal Activities

Enterprise Growth Fund Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in Barbados as a company authorised 
to issue an unlimited number of Class A common shares and an unlimited number of Class B common 
shares without par value.

The address of the Company’s registered office is “Westgate”, Monteith Gardens, Barbarees Hill, St. 
Michael. The principal activity of the Company is the provision of venture capital and loan financing to 
small and medium-sized Barbadian businesses. Additionally the Company also provides management 
services to various Funds operating in the manufacturing, agriculture, tourism and innovation sectors (see 
note 17). 

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on May 29, 2015.

2. Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB).  

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments 
classified as available-for-sale investments.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Barbados dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
These values have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

7
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

2. Basis of Preparation, continued

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. Estimates and judgments are 
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These accounting estimates 
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the 
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Provision for loan losses

The provision for loan losses is estimated using discounted cash flow analysis. The Company uses its 
judgment to select assumptions that reflect the expected timing and amount of future payments by 
customers and where applicable the expected net proceeds on realization of security. 

(ii) Fair market value of investments

Fair value of a financial asset or liability is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal, or in its 
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at the measurement 
date.   The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

The Company values instruments carried at fair value using quoted market prices, where available. 
Quoted market prices represent a Level 1 valuation. When quoted market prices are not available, 
the Company maximizes the use of observable inputs within valuation models. When all significant 
inputs are observable, the valuation is classified as Level 2. Valuations that require the significant use 
of unobservable inputs are considered Level 3.

(iii) Employee retirement benefits

The Company operates a defined benefit pension scheme. Measurement of pension costs and 
pension obligations for defined benefit plans involves the application of a number of assumptions and 
estimates, relating to the discount rate, future salary levels, expected employee turnover rate, the 
return on plan assets, annual pension increases, expected adjustments to the National Insurance 
Scheme basic amount and demographic factors. Changes in pension assumptions will affect the 
pension obligations and pension cost for the period. Pension obligations are significantly affected by 
changes in the discount rate, life expectancy and expected salary and pension adjustments.

8
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

2. Basis of Preparation, continued

(d) Use of estimates and judgements, continued

(iv) Depreciation of property, plant & equipment

The Company assigns useful lives and residual values to property, plant and equipment based on 
periodic studies of actual asset lives and the intended use for those assets. Changes in 
circumstances such as technological advances, prospective economic utilisation and physical 
condition of the assets concerned could result in the actual useful lives or residual values differing 
from initial estimates. Where the Company determines that the useful life of property, plant and 
equipment should be shortened or residual value reduced, it depreciates the net book value in excess 
of the residual value over the revised remaining useful life, thereby increasing depreciation expense. 
Any change in asset lives or residual value is reflected in the Company’s financial statements when 
the change in estimate is determined.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Company have been applied consistently to all 
periods presented in these financial statements.

(a) Accounts receivable, net

Accounts receivable are stated at their nominal value less provisions for estimated irrecoverable balances.

(b) Revenue recognition

Interest on deposits
Interest income on deposits represents interest earned on contractual agreements with financial 
institutions at agreed rates of interest.

Income from loans
Income from loans is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. 

All interest accrued during the period has been recorded as income in the financial statements. Provisions 
for bad debts are recorded for clients in non-accrual status where there is evidence to support the fact that 
the loan is impaired.   

Income from management fees
Income derived from management fees are recognised as they accrue in accordance with the provisions of 
separate agreements between the Company and the trustees or sponsors for the funds under 
management using contractual interest rates.

9
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

3. Significant Accounting Policies, continued

(c) Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Fund’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. 

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit 
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

(d) Investments, net

Investments comprise term deposits, which are held to maturity for a period exceeding 90 days, are 
categorised as held to maturity and carried at cost. Provision for losses is made at a level considered 
adequate to absorb anticipated losses considering the current economic conditions and other relevant 
factors.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost, net of accumulated depreciation.  Depreciation and 
amortisation are provided on the straight-line basis at rates based on the estimated useful life of each 
asset.  Land is not depreciated.  The annual rates applied are:

Buildings - 2.0%
Office equipment - 12.5%
Vehicles - 20.0%
Furniture and equipment - 20.0%
Computer equipment - 33.3%
Computer software - 100.0%

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date and 
adjusted if appropriate.

(f) Deferred shareholder grant

Shareholder grants relating specifically to technical assistance for investees are deferred and recognised 
into income as costs are incurred for such technical assistance.

10
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

3. Significant Accounting Policies, continued

(g) Pension – defined benefit scheme

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by 
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, 
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the 
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the 
recognised asset is limited to the present value of the economic benefits available in the form of any future 
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of 
economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum requirements.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprises actuarial gains and losses, the return 
on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are
recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest 
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate 
used to measure defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined 
benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the 
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related 
to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of the plan are changed or when the plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that 
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The 
Company recognises gains or losses in the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement 
occurs.

(h) Operating leases

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the lease.

(i) Related parties

Parties are considered related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or 
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.  Parties are 
also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence.  
Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.  Transactions between related parties are based 
on terms similar to those offered to non-related parties.
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

4. Forthcoming new standards or amendment requirements: 

Standards and interpretations adopted
There were no new standards and amendments of standards adopted during the year ended December 
31, 2014 which had an impact on the Company.

New Standards and interpretations not yet adopted

a) IFRS 7 – Financial Instrument Disclosures (Amendments), effective September 30, 2014
b) IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments Classification and Measurement, effective January 1, 2018
c) IFRS 15 – Revenue Contracts with Customers, effective January 1, 2017
d) IAS 24 – Related Party Disclosures, effective July 1, 2014
e) IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation, effective January 1, 2015
f) IAS 39 – Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, effective January 1, 2014

5. Cash and Short Term Deposits

Cash and short term deposits comprise cash on hand, cash at bank and call and fixed deposits with 
original maturity dates of 90 days or less. These are illustrated as follows:

2014 2013

Cash on hand and at bank $ 5,206,777 2,167,817
Short term deposits 1,460,267 3,664,702

$ 6,667,044 5,832,519

The applicable interest rates for the short term deposits range from 1.50% to 4.0% (2013: 1.6% - 3.75%).

12
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

4. Forthcoming new standards or amendment requirements: 
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2014 2013

Cash on hand and at bank $ 5,206,777 2,167,817
Short term deposits 1,460,267 3,664,702
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The applicable interest rates for the short term deposits range from 1.50% to 4.0% (2013: 1.6% - 3.75%).
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

6. Accounts Receivable and Prepayments, net 

Accounts receivable and prepayments, net are comprised of:

2014 2013

Accounts receivable, net $ 125,965 31,047
Other receivables, prepayments and loan benefits 1,108,248 734,458

$ 1,234,213 765,505

7. Loans Receivable, net

The maximum loan size allowed is the greater of $1,500,000 and 15% of the total capitalization of the 
Fund.  The minimum loan size is limited to $100,000.  Loans shall not be used to purchase land, buildings 
or other real estate except where the buildings are to be used for productive purposes.  All loans shall be 
repaid within twelve (12) years or less.  

When a loan/bond is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for impairment and 
subsequent recoveries are credited to the provision for loan loss in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. The Company as the Fund Manager is entitled to receive an incentive payment 
when one of its managed funds recovers any principal and interest in respect of any loan which may be 
classified as uncollectible and/or may have been written off the books of the Fund. Such an incentive 
payment shall be ten percent (10%) on the net amounts recovered.

The grace period (i.e. the period during which only interest payments are due and payable) for loans with 
repayment periods of five (5) years or less will be limited to one year.

For loans with repayment periods in excess of five (5) years, but less than or equal to ten (10) years, the 
grace period is limited to two (2) years. For loans with a repayment period in excess of ten (10) years the 
grace period is limited to not more than three (3) years.

Where a construction and/or installation contract is for less than the stipulated grace period, the grace 
period will be limited to the length of the construction and/or installation contract.

Security is by way of first or second legal mortgage on property (ies) owned by the borrower(s).
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

7. Loans Receivable, net, continued

The maturity structure of loans receivable, gross, is: 
2014 2013

Under 1 year $ 1,974,132 2,061,964
1 – 5 years 2,244,181 2,410,861
Over 5 years 6,081,115 6,366,351

Total loans receivable $ 10,299,428 10,839,176

Less loan loss provision:
Balance at January 1 $ (1,466,593) (1,465,584)
Impairment loss (140,709) (1,009)

Balance at December 31 (1,607,302) (1,466,593)

Total loans receivable, net $ 8,692,126 9,372,583

Loans receivable carry interest rates of 7.5% to 9.5% per annum at the end of 2014 (2013: 7.5% - 9.5% 
per annum).  However, net loans receivable includes the amount of $1,294,061 (2013: $1,306,176) 
relating to staff loans.  These amounts carry interest rates of 3% to 3.63% per annum (2013: 3% to 3.63% 
per annum).

The Company has invested in convertible bonds. These bonds are redeemable and bear interest at annual 
rates ranging from 8% - 10%.  Any unpaid interest can be converted into shares of the borrower at $1 per 
share at the option of the Company. These bonds which are reflected in loans receivable, net, amount to 
$1,087,041 (2013: $1,840,302).

During the year, the Company disbursed $490 (2013: $3,041) in new bonds and received no principal 
repayments (2013: $57,993).
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

8. Other Assets

In 2010, the Government of Barbados made a decision to wind down the operations of CRL Limited and
as a consequence the existing portfolio of CRL Limited was assigned to the Company in return for the 
equivalent value of one (1) non-voting Class B share. These assets are valued at $100 and the relevant 
shares were transferred to the Government of Barbados.

2014 2013

Interest receivable on term deposits $ 10,698 15,183
Assets transferred from CRL 100 100

Total $ 10,798 15,283

9. Investments, net

Investments held by the Company are classified as held to maturity investments:

2014 2013

Preferred shares $ 1,331,451 2,713,500
Less: Provision for investment losses (1,331,451) (1,470,617)

Net investments - 1,242,883
Commercial deposits 2,652,994 1,335,916

Balances, end of year $ 2,652,994 2,578,799

The Company has invested in preferred shares which are subject to an annual 8% cumulative dividend.  
The option to convert outstanding dividends into preferred shares was not exercised during the financial 
year.

During the year, preference shares totalling $1,382,049 were redeemed (2013- nil). 

Included in investments is an amount of $2,652,994 (2013: $1,335,916) representing commercial deposits 
with a maturity period of greater than 90 days.  At the reporting date the effective interest rate range from 
1% to 4.0% per annum (2013: 5.875% per annum).
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

11. Corporation tax

Corporation tax has not been provided for in these financial statements since the Company is exempt 
from payment of tax in accordance with Income Tax Act Cap 73 which exempts entities whose funds 
have been provided by Government and used for purposes of promoting the development of sectors of 
the economy. 

12. Deferred Shareholder Grant

2014 2013

Balance – January 1 $ 217,896 278,301

Disbursements – Website Design - (38,050)
Disbursements – Marketing, Planning & Evaluation (45,000) (25,000)
Receipts – Technical Assistance 5,000 -
Interest earned on funds 2,075 2,645

Balance – December 31 $ 179,971 217,896

The Company receives grants from the Government of Barbados to contribute to the financial expertise 
of the borrowers. The Company assesses requests from its borrowers on an individual basis to 
determine the allocation of the funds received.

13. Due from Related Parties

2014 2013

Agricultural Development Fund $ 172,489 202,980
Energy Smart Fund 67,693 -
Export, Promotion & Marketing Fund 4,029 -
Industrial Investment and Employment Fund 76,229 89,322
Innovation Fund 25,421 25,007
Small Hotels Investment Fund 267,336 287,296
Tourism Loan Fund 218,682 215,487

$ 831,879 820,092

Amounts due from related parties consists mainly of management fees charged during the course of the 
financial year in accordance with the provisions of separate agreements between the Company and the 
Trustees or Sponsors of the Funds under management using contractual rates (see note 17).

Related party transactions
The related party transactions are made on terms equivalent to those prevailing in an arm’s length 
transaction only if those terms can be substantiated. The amounts are unsecured, interest free and have 
no fixed terms of repayment.
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

14. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Company invested in a defined benefit pension plan during the year ended December 31, 2005. The 
assets of the Plan are administered on behalf of the trustees by Sagicor Life Incorporated.  The amounts 
recognised in the statement of financial position and the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) are as follows:

2014 2013
Statement of Financial Position
Present value of obligation at end of year $ 1,268,697 1,180,269
Minus Fair value of plan assets at end of year (1,754,862) (1,617,822)

Asset recognized in the statement of financial position $ (486,165) (437,553)

Current service cost (reduced by Employee contributions) $ 58,990 63,184
Net interest on net defined benefit liability (30,448) (23,840)

Expense recognized in profit and loss $ 28,542 39,344

Actuarial gain on obligation $ (58,617) (64,120)
Return on Plan assets excluding interest income 67,414 25,740

Re-measurements recognised in OCI 8,797 (38,380)

2014 2013
Movement in net asset recognized in the statement of 
financial position
Net asset at the start of the year $ (437,553) (355,006)
Amount recognized in profit and loss 28,542 39,344
Re-measurements recognised in OCI 8,797 (38,380)
Contributions - Employer (85,951) (83,511)

Net asset at the end of the year $ (486,165) (437,553)

2014 2013
Movement in present value of obligation
Present value of obligation at start of year $ 1,180,269 1,060,330
Interest expense 93,893 86,723
Current service cost 92,792 97,384
Less: benefits paid (39,640) (48)
Actuarial gain loss on obligation (58,617) (64,120)

Present value of obligation at year end $ 1,268,697 1,180,269
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

14. Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

2014 2013
Movement in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at start of year $ 1,617,822 1,415,336
Actual return on plan assets 56,927 84,823
Contributions paid – total 119,753 117,711
Benefits paid (39,640) (48)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 1,754,862 1,617,822

Plan assets are equally distributed between equity investments and government bonds.

Principal actuarial assumptions
Discount rate at end of year 7.5% 7.50%
Future salary increases 6.00% 6.00%
Future pension increases 0.00% 0.00%
Future changes in National Insurance Scheme ceiling 3.5% 3.50%
Mortality                                         1994 Group Annuity Mortality Static Tables for Males and Females

Historical information

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Present Value of the obligation (1,268,697) (1,180,269) (1,060,330) (953,572) (846,545)
Fair value of plan assets 1,754,862 1,617,822 1,415,336 1,216,314 1,083,487
Surplus 486,165 437,553 355,006 262,742 236,942

Sensitivity analysis
The calculation of the projected benefit obligation is sensitive to the assumptions used.  The table below 
summarises how the projected benefit obligation measured at the end of the reporting period would have 
increased/(decreased) as a result of a change in the respective assumptions by 0.25%

+0.25% -0.25%

Discount rate 1,210,713 1,331,034
Salary increases 1,318,005 1,222,038
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14. Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

2014 2013
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15. Stated Capital
2014 2013

Class A Shares – 35,000 shares – no par value $ 3,500,000 3,500,000
Class B Shares – 138,731 shares – no par value 13,872,109 13,872,109

$ 17,372,109 17,372,109

The holders of Class “A” shares are entitled to receive dividends in respect of their shareholding and to 
vote for the election of directors of the Company.  Any holder of 10,000 or more Class “A” shares is 
entitled to appoint one director.

With regard to distribution or liquidation or winding-up of the Company, Class “A” shareholders shall 
receive, before any distribution is made to the Class “B” shareholders, the stated capital of these shares 
plus an amount equivalent to a 10% annual rate of return on their initial investment in the Company, after 
the discharge of all liabilities of the Company.

Class “B” shares are reserved only for the Government of Barbados or entities owned by the 
Government.  Class “B” shares are not entitled to receive dividends or to elect the directors of the 
Company.  Upon the distribution, liquidation or winding-up of the Company, Class “B” shareholders shall 
receive the stated capital of their shares plus an amount equivalent to a 7% compounded annual rate of 
return on the initial investment in the Company after payment to Class “A” shareholders of their 
entitlement as stated above.

On October 1, 2010 amounts owed to CRL Limited were transferred to the equity shareholding of the 
Company in the form of 18,296 Class “B” common shares for the subscribed value of $1,829,518. The 
remaining 10 Class “A” shares previously held by CRL Limited in the capital of the Company were re-
designated as 10 Class “B” common shares. These shares are valued at $100 per share.

The Company declared a dividend of $105,000 (2013: $105,000). This dividend represented $3.00 per 
qualifying Class “A” Share.

16. Commitments

At the reporting date, there was one outstanding loan commitment totalling $350,000 (2013: NIL). 
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(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

17. Management Fees

Management fees recognized as income (net of VAT) are as follows:

2014 2013

Agricultural Development Fund $ 595,093 749,803
Energy Smart Fund 63,579 1,896
Export, Promotion & Marketing Fund 10,859 447
Industrial Investment and Employment Fund 261,569 262,050
Innovation Fund 92,947 92,821
Small Hotels Investment Fund 911,192 909,663
Tourism Loan Fund 743,131 732,388

$ 2,678,370 2,749,068

Amounts receivable related to management fees as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 were $831,879 and 
$807,253 respectively.

The complete list of funds under the management of the Company is as follows:-

• Agricultural Development Fund
• Energy Smart Fund
• Export, Promotion & Marketing Fund
• Industrial Investment and Employment Fund
• Innovation Fund
• Small Hotels Investment Fund
• Tourism Loan Fund
• Tourism Industry Relief Fund
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ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014
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17. Management Fees

Management fees recognized as income (net of VAT) are as follows:

2014 2013

Agricultural Development Fund $ 595,093 749,803
Energy Smart Fund 63,579 1,896
Export, Promotion & Marketing Fund 10,859 447
Industrial Investment and Employment Fund 261,569 262,050
Innovation Fund 92,947 92,821
Small Hotels Investment Fund 911,192 909,663
Tourism Loan Fund 743,131 732,388

$ 2,678,370 2,749,068

Amounts receivable related to management fees as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 were $831,879 and 
$807,253 respectively.

The complete list of funds under the management of the Company is as follows:-

• Agricultural Development Fund
• Energy Smart Fund
• Export, Promotion & Marketing Fund
• Industrial Investment and Employment Fund
• Innovation Fund
• Small Hotels Investment Fund
• Tourism Loan Fund
• Tourism Industry Relief Fund
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18. Due to Tourism Industrial Relief Fund

On February 19, 2010 the Government of Barbados announced the creation of a $25 million Tourism 
Industrial Relief Fund (TIRF) to assist the tourism accommodation and ancillary services sub-sectors to 
remain in business and maintain employment levels during the global economic recession. This Fund is
administered by the Enterprise Growth Fund Limited (EGFL). At the end of the financial year 2014
$96,136 (2013: $96,136) remains undisbursed. 

19. Post Balance Sheet Events

Subsequent to the reporting date, the decision was made by the Board of Directors to change the year-
end of the Fund to March 31. This will be effected from March 2016.

20. Financial Risk Management

Introduction and overview
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

• credit risk

• liquidity risk

• market risk

• operational risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the objectives, 
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk and the management of capital.

Risk Management Framework
The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of 
the Company’s risk management framework.  Risk management policies are established to identify and 
analyse the risks faced by the Company, in order to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to 
monitor risks and the adherence to limits.  These policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market conditions, products and services offered.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a borrower or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s loans and investment securities.

Loans receivable
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each 
borrower.  A loan provisioning policy has been implemented and all borrowers are assessed according to 
their credit risk profile.  These assessments, which involve ascertaining the clients’ ability to service their 
existing liabilities as well as the value of their securitised assets, are used in order to determine the 
extent of credit risk. 
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20. Financial Risk Management, continued

Management of credit risk
The Company employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk relating to loans 
receivable, by the taking of security whose value approximates the quantum of funds advanced. The 
principal collateral types for loans are:

• Mortgages over residential/commercial properties
• Charges over business assets/bill of sale
• Personal guarantees
• Hypothecation of deposit balances

Financial investments
The Company’s limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in reputable financial institutions and 
Government of Barbados securities. Government securities are generally invested over a period longer 
that than of term deposits with other financial institutions. The Company’s has documented investment 
policies in place which act as a guide to the management of credit risk on investments.

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.  The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Carrying Amount
2014 2013

Held to maturity investments $ 2,652,994 1,335,916
Loans and receivables 8,692,126 9,372,583
Cash and cash equivalents 6,667,044 5,832,519

Total $ 18,012,164 16,541,018

Credit quality by class of financial assets

Loans Receivable
The credit quality of loans and advances is managed though the prudent underwriting principles 
established by management.

Cash and balances with financial institutions
The credit quality of financial institutions holding the Fund’s cash resources is assessed by the level of 
credit worthiness and by comparison to other financial institutions. The Fund only places its cash 
resources with reputable financial institutions.
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20. Financial Risk Management, continued

The tables below show the credit quality analysis of financial assets:

2014

Neither Past due Past due but Individually 
Nor impaired not impaired Impaired Total

Cash Resources $ 6,667,044 - - 6,667,044
Financial investments:
Held to maturity 2,652,994 - - 2,652,994
Loans receivable 3,104,192 5,473,207 114,727 8,692,126

12,424,230 5,473,207 114,727 18,012,164

2013

Neither Past due Past due but Individually 
Nor impaired not impaired Impaired Total

Cash resources $ 5,832,519 - - 5,832,519
Financial investments:
Held to maturity 2,578,799 - - 2,578,799
Loans receivable 3,087,127 6,285,456 - 9,372,583

11,498,445 6,285,456 - 17,783,901

Impairment Assessment
Impaired loans and securities
Impaired loans and securities are loans and securities for which management determines that it is 
probable that it will be unable to collect all principal and interest due according to the contractual terms of 
the loans/securities agreement(s).

Past due but not impaired loans
Loans and securities where contractual interest or principal payments are past due but management 
believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of security/collateral available and/or 
the stage of collection of amounts owed.

Allowances for impairment
Management monitors the aging and credit quality of each loan facility extended through the monthly 
preparation of a delinquency report. Allowances are established on a per loan basis as set in the 
Company’s Loan Provisioning Policy.
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20. Financial Risk Management, continued

Concentration of credit risk
Concentration of credit risk exists if a number of borrowers are engaged in similar activities or are 
located in the same industry sector or have similar economic characteristics such that their ability to 
meet contractual obligations would be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other 
conditions.  Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to 
developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location.  Management does not believe that 
the concentration is unusual or provides undue risks.

Impairment losses
The aging of accounts receivable at the reporting date was:

Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
2014 2014 2013 2013

Not past due $ - - - -

Past due 0 – 30 days 125,965 - 30,985 -

Past due 31 – 120 days - - - -

More than one year 33,010 32,943 33,010 32,943

Total $ 158,975 32,943 63,995 32,943

The movement in the allowance for impairment during the year was as follows:

2014 2013

Balance at beginning of year $ 32,943 32,943

Bad debt recovered - -

Balance at end of year $ 32,943 32,943

25



37

ENTERPRISE GROWTH FUND LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

(Amounts in Barbados Dollars)

20. Financial Risk Management, continued

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from its financial 
liabilities.

Management of Liquidity Risk 
Management’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. This has been facilitated 
by using a computerised management system which tracks the quantum of funds available for lending 
and other expenditure.

Analysis of financial liabilities 
The financial liabilities of the Company, based on their earliest possible contractual maturity, are due 
within 30 days (2013 – 30 days).

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and 
equity prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holding of financial instruments.  The 
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 
parameters, while optimising the return on investment.

Management of Market Risk
Frequent reviews and monitoring of cash resources are conducted by management in order to minimise
instances of market risk in accordance with the Company’s Short Term Investment Policy. Further 
considerations are made relating to the level of concentration of resources in financial institutions.

Exposure to currency risk
Currency risk is the potential risk of loss from fluctuating foreign exchange rates when an investor has 
exposure to foreign currency or in foreign-currency-traded investments. The Company had no significant 
exposure to currency risk at the end of the financial year.

Exposure to interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk of loss from the fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of financial 
instruments because of a change in market interest rates. It arises when there is a mismatch between 
the interest-bearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities, which are subject to interest rate adjustments, 
within a specified period.
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20. Financial Risk Management, continued

An interest rate sensitivity analysis was performed to determine the impact on total loss of reasonable 
possible changes in interest rates prevailing at December 31, 2014, with all other variables held 
constant. The impact is illustrated and shown in the table below:

Increase/(decrease) of 100 bps 2014 2013

Impact on comprehensive income +100 bps $ 85,207 73,744
Impact on comprehensive income – 100 bps (85,207) (73,744)

Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes, associated with 
the Company’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than 
credit, market and liquidity risks such as those from legal and regulatory requirements and generally 
accepted standards of corporate behaviour.  Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s operations 
and are faced by all business entities.

The objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and 
damage to the Company’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that 
restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk 
is delegated to the trustees of the Company. Key policies and procedures used in managing operating 
risk involve segregation of duties, delegation of authority and financial and managerial reporting. 
Mitigation of operating risk is supported by a well defined organisational structure that segregates 
operational and administrative functions. Additionally, quarterly reviews are undertaken by the trustees of 
the Company.

Financial income and expense
2014 2013

Interest income on unimpaired loans & receivables $ 639,051 553,082
Interest income on bank deposits 132,850 166,279
Reversal of investment provisions 139,166 -

Financial income 911,067 719,361

Financial expenses (140,709) (1,009)

Net financial income $ 770,358 718,352

Investments
Non-current investments
Held-to-maturity investments $ 2,652,994 1,335,916
Available-for-sale investments - -
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21. Fair Value Disclosure of Financial Instruments 

Fair value amounts represent the approximate values at which financial instruments could be exchanged 
in current transactions between willing parties.  There is no available trading market for these financial 
instruments and therefore, it is not possible to determine independently the estimated fair values.  The 
fair values of financial instruments are considered to approximate their book values.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the Statement of 
Financial Position are as follows:

2014 2014 2013 2013
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Cash and short term deposits $ 6,667,044 6,667,044 5,832,519 5,832,519
Accounts receivable & prepayments 1,234,213 1,234,213 765,505 765,505
Loans receivable, net 8,692,126 8,692,126 9,372,583 9,372,583
Preferred shares - 1,331,451 - 1,242,883
Held to maturity investments 2,652,994 2,652,994 1,335,916 1,335,916
Due from related parties 831,879 831,879 820,092 820,092
Accounts payable (125,968) (125,968) (95,750) (95,750)
Accrued employee benefits (464,397) (464,397) (423,529) (423,529)
Due to related parties - - (13,801) (13,801)
Due to Tourism Industry Relief Fund (96,136) (96,136) (96,136) (96,136)

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial 
instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets of liabilities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the 
statement of financial position date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and 
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory 
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s 
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid 
price. These instruments are included in Level 1.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value 
are observable, either directly or indirectly

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise 
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific 
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is 
included in Level 2.
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21. Fair Value Disclosure of Financial Instruments, continued

Level 3:   techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are 
not based on observable market data.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included 
in Level 3.

22. Key Management Personnel Compensation

Key management personnel compensation paid during the year was as follows:

2014 2013

Salaries, directors fees and benefits $ 916,887 899,701

Key management personnel are entitled to post retirement benefits under the Company’s defined benefit 
pension scheme which cannot be reasonably estimated at year end.

23. Prior Year Adjustment

The financial statements for 2013 have been restated to include accrued employee benefits which were
not recorded in prior years. This change has resulted in the reduction in accumulated surplus for income 
years 2013 and 2012 as illustrated below:

Summary of the prior year accounting impact 2013 2012

Prior year adjustment - increase in employee benefits $ 61,408 362,121
Prior year adjustment – increase in employee benefits liability (61,408) (362,121)
Prior year adjustment – decrease in accumulated surplus $ (61,408) 362,121

The amount of $40,868 which relates to the financial year ended December 31, 2014 is included in 
operating expenses.

24. Contingencies

At February 1, 2012, the Company signed a Bond of Guarantee with the Comptroller of Customs. 
This is a general bond for securing duty on goods warehoused in a customs controlled area with a 
liability of $250,000 for goods owned by BICO Ltd.

25. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures were reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.
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             The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

 5

Agricultural Development Fund
Statement of Changes in Fund
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

Development Accumulated
Fund Deficit Total

$ $ $

Balance at January 1, 2012 33,029,931 (9,045,195) 23,984,736

Funds received from Government 4,000,000 - 4,000,000

Grants disbursed (Note 10) (13,612,537) - (13,612,537)

Net comprehensive income - 183,555 183,555

Balance at December 31, 2013 23,417,394 (8,861,640) 14,555,754

Grants disbursed (Note 10) (793,543) - (793,543)

Net comprehensive loss - (363,191) (363,191)

Balance at December 31, 2014 22,623,851 (9,224,831) 13,399,020
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 6

Agricultural Development Fund
Statement of Comprehensive Loss

Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

2014 2013
$ $

Revenue
Interest on deposits 126,931 281,400          

Interest on loans 450,125 819,612          

577,056 1,101,012       

Less: Interest expense - 28,419            

577,056 1,072,593       

Expenses
Bank charges 290 4,293             

Impairment losses (Note 11) 206,000 (33,334)          

Management Committee fees 5,790 9,890             

Management fees (Note 5) 699,232 881,018          

Professional fees 28,936 27,171            

940,247 889,038          

Net comprehensive (loss) income (363,191) 183,555          
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Agricultural Development Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

2014 2013
$ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Net comprehensive (loss) income (363,191)       183,554

Adjustment for:

   Provision for impairment losses 206,000         (33,334)

Operating (loss) profit before working capital changes (157,191)       150,220

Decrease (increase) in interest receivable 24,996           (3,131)

Decrease (increase) in other receivable 1,849             (1,849)

Loans disbursed (364,847)       (543,433)

Loans repaid 554,142         1,228,298

Revolving line of credit repaid -                 33,528

Sale of available-for-sale investments -                 33,334

Sale of short-term investment 1,031,638      1,055,753

Purchase of short term investment -                 (2,089,002)

Increase in accounts payable 1,086             2,437

Decrease in due from related party 20,499           1,353,026

(Decrease) increase in due to related parties (14,642)         370,210

Net cash from operating activities 1,097,530      1,589,391

Cash flows from financing activities
Loan repaid to Central Bank of Barbados -                 (2,340,000)

Loan received from Central Bank of Barbados -                 819,425

Funds received from Government of Barbados -                 4,000,000

Grants disbursed (793,543)       (13,612,537)

Net cash used in financing activities (793,543)       (11,133,112)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 303,987         (9,543,721)

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the year 2,606,135      12,149,856

Cash and cash equivalents- end of the year 2,910,122      2,606,135

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Cash 690,878         460,243

Term deposits (Note 3) 2,219,244      2,145,892

2,910,122      2,606,135
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(expressed in Barbados dollars)

1. Establishment and purpose

The Agricultural Development Fund was established in Barbados by an Act of Parliament on 
December 12, 2001. Financial resources, as determined by the Minister of Agriculture, are 
paid into this Fund.  These resources are used to finance projects and programmes that are 
designed for the improved development of agriculture in Barbados.

The Fund’s operations commenced on March 28, 2002.

2. Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board.  

Basis of measurement 

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following 
assets are stated at their fair value: financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss 
and financial instruments classified as available-for-sale.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting 
Standards requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect 
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates.

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2014

a) The following amendments to published standards are mandatory for the Fund’s 
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.

• IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interest in Other Entities (amendment for investment entities) 
– effective January 1, 2014

• IAS 32 Financial Instruments - Presentation (amendment to the offsetting of assets 
and liabilities) - effective January 1, 2014

• IAS 36 Impairment of Assets (amendment arising from recoverable amount 
disclosures for Non-financial assets) - effective January 1, 2014

b) The amendments below were not relevant or did not have a significant impact on the 
financial statements.

• IFRS 27 – Separate Financial Statements (amendment) - effective January 1, 2014
• IAS 39 – Financial Instruments: Recognition & Measurement (amendments for 

Novations of derivatives) - effective January 1, 2014
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2. Significant accounting policies.....continued

c) Standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective but will be relevant to the 
Fund.

• IFRS 5 – Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations (annual 
improvements) - effective January 1, 2016

• IFRS 7 – Financial Instruments: Disclosures (annual improvements)- effective 
January 1, 2016

• IFRS 8 – Operating Segments (aggregation of segments and recognition of segment 
assets) - effective July 1, 2014

• IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments (Classification and Measurement of financial assets)
effective January 1, 2018

• IFRS 12 – Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (amendments regarding the 
application of the consolidation exception) - effective January 1, 2016

• IFRS 13 – Fair value Measurement (scope of portfolio exception in paragraph 52) -
effective July 1, 2014

• IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers (amendment) - effective January 
1, 2017

• IAS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements (amendments resulting from disclosure 
initiative) – effective January 1, 2016

• IAS 24 – Related Party Disclosures (annual improvements – management entities) 
July 1, 2014

d) Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not yet 
effective and are not relevant to the Fund’s operations.

• IFRS 2 – Share based payment (definition of ‘vesting condition’) – effective July 1, 
2014

• IFRS 3 – Business Combinations (amendment) - effective July 1, 2014)
• IFRS 7 -  Financial Instruments: Disclosures (additional hedge accounting) – applies 

when IFRS 9 is applied
• IFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial Statements (amendment) - effective January 1, 

2016
• IFRS 11 – Joint Arrangements – effective January 1, 2016
• IFRS 14 – Regulatory Deferral Accounts - effective January 1, 2016
• IAS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment - effective July 1, 2014 & January 1, 2016
• IAS 19 – Employee Benefits - effective July 1, 2014 & January 1, 2016
• IAS 27 – Separate Financial Statements - effective January 1, 2016
• IAS 28 – Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - effective January 1, 2016
• IAS 34 – Interim Financial Reporting - effective January 1, 2016
• IAS 38 – Intangible Assets (amendment) - effective July 1, 2014 & January 1, 2016
• IAS 39 – Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (amendment to 

continue to apply hedge accounting) – effective when IFRS 9 is applied
• IAS 40 – Investment Property (amendment) effective July 1, 2014
• IAS 41 – Agriculture (amendment to bring Bearer Plants into IAS 16 scope) –

effective January 1, 2016
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2. Significant accounting policies.....continued

Foreign currencies

Transactions arising during the year involving foreign currencies are converted at the rates 
prevailing on the dates the transactions occurred. Differences arising from fluctuations in 
exchange rates are included in the statement of loss.

Taxation

The fund is exempt from income tax under section 9 (1) (f) of the Income Tax Act, Cap 73.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short term highly liquid investments which are readily 
convertible into known amounts of cash without notice and which are within three (3) 
months of maturity when acquired. These are shown at amortised cost.

Short term investments

Short term investments are investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of 
cash and which are within three (3) to twelve (12) months of maturity when acquired.  These 
are shown at amortised cost.

Financial instruments

i) Classification

Originated loans are loans created by the Fund providing money to a debtor other 
than those created with the intention of short-term profit taking. Originated loans 
comprise loans to customers.

Held-to-maturity assets are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and 
fixed maturity that the Fund has the intent and ability to hold to maturity.

Available-for-sale assets are financial assets that are not financial assets at fair value 
through profit and loss, originated by the Fund, or held-to-maturity. Available-for-
sale instruments include certain equity investments.

ii) Recognition

The Fund recognises financial assets on the date it commits to purchasing the assets 
or originating loans. From this date, any gains and losses arising from changes in fair 
value of assets are recognised.
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2. Significant accounting policies.....continued

Foreign currencies

Transactions arising during the year involving foreign currencies are converted at the rates 
prevailing on the dates the transactions occurred. Differences arising from fluctuations in 
exchange rates are included in the statement of loss.

Taxation

The fund is exempt from income tax under section 9 (1) (f) of the Income Tax Act, Cap 73.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short term highly liquid investments which are readily 
convertible into known amounts of cash without notice and which are within three (3) 
months of maturity when acquired. These are shown at amortised cost.

Short term investments

Short term investments are investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of 
cash and which are within three (3) to twelve (12) months of maturity when acquired.  These 
are shown at amortised cost.

Financial instruments

i) Classification

Originated loans are loans created by the Fund providing money to a debtor other 
than those created with the intention of short-term profit taking. Originated loans 
comprise loans to customers.

Held-to-maturity assets are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and 
fixed maturity that the Fund has the intent and ability to hold to maturity.

Available-for-sale assets are financial assets that are not financial assets at fair value 
through profit and loss, originated by the Fund, or held-to-maturity. Available-for-
sale instruments include certain equity investments.

ii) Recognition

The Fund recognises financial assets on the date it commits to purchasing the assets 
or originating loans. From this date, any gains and losses arising from changes in fair 
value of assets are recognised.

10



54

Agricultural Development Fund                                                          
Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

2. Significant accounting policies.....continued

Financial instruments…continued

iii) Measurement

Financial instruments are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition all available-for-sale assets are measured at fair 
value based on their quoted market price at the balance sheet date without any 
deduction for transaction costs. Where the instrument is not actively traded or 
quoted on recognised exchanges, fair value is determined using discounted cash flow 
analysis. Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash 
flows are based on management’s best estimates and the discount rate is a market 
related rate at the balance sheet date for an instrument with similar terms and 
conditions.

Any available-for-sale asset that does not have a quoted market price in an active 
market and where fair value cannot be reliably measured is stated at cost, including 
transaction costs less impairment losses.

Gains and losses arising from the change in fair value of available-for-sale 
investments subsequent to initial recognition are accounted for as changes in the 
investment revaluation reserve.

All originated loans and held-to-maturity assets are measured at amortised costs less 
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated on the effective interest rate method. 
Premiums and discounts including initial transaction costs are included in the carrying 
amount of the related instrument and amortised based on the effective interest rate 
of the instrument.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Fund’s assets are reviewed at each financial year end to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the 
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
loss.

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, the 
cumulative loss that had been recognised in reserves is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive loss even though the financial asset has not been derecognised. The amount 
of the cumulative loss is the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, 
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive loss.

11
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Agricultural Development Fund                                                          
Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

2. Significant accounting policies.....continued

Financial instruments…continued

iii) Measurement

Financial instruments are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition all available-for-sale assets are measured at fair 
value based on their quoted market price at the balance sheet date without any 
deduction for transaction costs. Where the instrument is not actively traded or 
quoted on recognised exchanges, fair value is determined using discounted cash flow 
analysis. Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash 
flows are based on management’s best estimates and the discount rate is a market 
related rate at the balance sheet date for an instrument with similar terms and 
conditions.

Any available-for-sale asset that does not have a quoted market price in an active 
market and where fair value cannot be reliably measured is stated at cost, including 
transaction costs less impairment losses.

Gains and losses arising from the change in fair value of available-for-sale 
investments subsequent to initial recognition are accounted for as changes in the 
investment revaluation reserve.

All originated loans and held-to-maturity assets are measured at amortised costs less 
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated on the effective interest rate method. 
Premiums and discounts including initial transaction costs are included in the carrying 
amount of the related instrument and amortised based on the effective interest rate 
of the instrument.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Fund’s assets are reviewed at each financial year end to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the 
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
loss.

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, the 
cumulative loss that had been recognised in reserves is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive loss even though the financial asset has not been derecognised. The amount 
of the cumulative loss is the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, 
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

2. Significant accounting policies.....continued

Impairment…continued

An originated loan is considered to be impaired when principal and interest are past due 
ninety days or more or if there is objective evidence that the fund will not be able to collect 
all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan.

i) Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of the Fund’s originating loans is calculated as the present 
value of estimated future cash flows, including amounts recoverable from guarantees 
and collateral, discounted at the original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective 
interest rate computed at the initial recognition of these financial assets).

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their net selling price and 
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessment of time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

ii) Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of a loan carried at amortised cost is reversed if the 
subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. 

In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change 
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Revenue recognition

Loans and investments

Interest income is accounted for on the accrual basis for investments, and all other loans 
other than non-accrual loans, using the effective interest yield method. When a loan is 
classified as non-accrual, accrued but uncollected interest is reversed against income of the 
current period, unless the loan, including accrued interest, is fully secured and in the process 
of collection. Thereafter, interest income is recognised only after the loan reverts to 
performing status.

Grants 

The Fund provides grants to the agricultural sector to finance projects which contribute to 
the long-term development and sustainability of agriculture in Barbados. Such grants, when 
disbursed, are recognised in the accounts as a reduction in the equity of the Fund. 

12
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Agricultural Development Fund                                                          
Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

3. Cash equivalents

This is a term deposit placed with a financial institution.

Financial Institution                 Date of Maturity        Interest Rate     Principal                
                                              $

2014

Capita Financial Services Inc. March 15, 2015 3.00%   2,219,244

2013

Capita Financial Services Inc. March 12, 2014 3.50% 2,145,892

4. Short-term investments

This is a term deposit placed with a financial institution.

Financial Institution                 Date of Maturity         Interest Rate            Principal              
                     $

2014

           Capita Financial Services Inc. April 24, 2015 3.25% 1,057,364

1,057,364
2013

        First Citizens Bank (Barbados) Ltd. January 06, 2014 2.30% 1,070,201
      Capita Financial Services Inc. April 24, 2014 3.75% 1,018,801

2,089,002

5. Related party transactions

The Enterprise Growth Fund Limited serves as manager of, and provides disbursement and 
administrative assistance to the Fund.  As a result of providing such services, the Enterprise 
Growth Fund Limited receives a management fee based on the value of the gross assets of 
the Fund, calculated quarterly and payable in arrears, at a rate of 0.5%.

Charges of $699,232 (2013 - $881,018) were incurred during the year in respect of 
management fees payable to the Enterprise Growth Fund Limited.  At December 31, 2014, 
the related party balances were as follows:

2014 2013
$ $

Due to Disaster Relief Revolving Fund     (401,056) (385,207)

Due to Enterprise Growth Fund Limited   (172,489) (202,980)

    (573,545) (588,187)

Due from Industrial, Investment & Employment Fund                                 -               20,499

These balances are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand.

13



57

Agricultural Development Fund                                                          
Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

6. Available-for-sale investments

At year end the Fund had invested $4,000,000 in 2% cumulative, redeemable, convertible 
Class A preferred shares at $1 per share in Exclusive Cottons of the Caribbean Inc. (ECCI) to 
be redeemed no later than March 31, 2015 at a price not greater than $3.32 per share. The 
Fund has reserved the right to convert any dividends not paid within twenty-four calendar
months of their due date into additional Class A preferred shares at a price of $1.00 per 
share.  The Fund’s total investment was $4,000,000 (2013 - $4,000,000) 

Impairment allowance recognised on this investment at year end was $4,000,000 (2013 -
$4,000,000).

At year end the Fund had invested $3,555,769 in 7% cumulative, redeemable, convertible 
Class A preferred shares at a price of $1 per share in The West Indies Sugar & Trading 
Company Limited (WISTCL). The Class A shares to be redeemed as follows: 3,055,769 to be 
redeemed no later than December 31, 2016 at a price no less than $1.15 per share; 500,000 
to be redeemed no later than December 31, 2018 at a price no less than $1.15 per share.
The fund reserved the right to convert any dividends not paid within twelve calendar months 
of their due date into additional Class A preferred shares at a price of $1 per share.  The 
Fund also purchased $33,334 ordinary shares at the price of $1 per share in WISTCL, these 
shares were repurchased by WISTCL on December 2, 2013.  The Fund’s total investment was 
$3,555,769 (2013 – $3,555,769)

Impairment allowance recognised on this investment at year end was $3,555,769 (2013 -
$3,555,769).

2014 2013
$ $

Original cost 7,555,769 7,555,769
Less: Allowance for impairment    (7,555,769)      (7, 555,769)

             - -

7. Revolving lines of credit

The revolving lines of credit at year end comprised:
Interest rate Outstanding balance

2014 2013 2014 2013
% % $ $

Exclusive Cottons of the Caribbean Inc. 6.5% 6.5%  504,136 504,136
Barbados Agricultural Development
   & Marketing Corporation  6.5%      6.5%      3,647 3,647

507,783 507,783
Less: Provision for credit losses   (504,136) (504,136)

                                                                                                            3,647 3,647     
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Agricultural Development Fund                                                          
Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

8. Loans receivable 

The loans at year end comprised:
Interest rate Outstanding balances

2014 2013 2014 2013
% % $ $

1 year 6.5-7.0 6.5-7.0 2,484,244 1,305,921
2 to 5 years 6.5-8.5 6.5-7.0 5,558,053 978,412
Over 5 years and up to 10 years 6.5-7.0 6.5-7.0 4,754,346 8,335,513
Over 10 years and up to 15 years 6.5 6.5-7.0     1,565,344 3,931,436

14,361,987 14,551,282
Less: Provision for loan losses    (4,377,030) (4,171,030)

    9,984,957 10,380,252

2014 2013
$ $

Provision for loan losses
Balance at January 1 4,171,030 4,171,030
Increase in provision                                                                 206,000 -

Balance at December 31       4,377,030        4,171,030

9. Taxation
2014 2013

$ $
Statement of Financial Position:
Withholding taxes refundable – year of income 2003          22,714 22,714

10. Grants disbursed

During the year, the following grants were disbursed:
2014 2013

$ $

           Barbados Agricultural Development and
              Marketing Corporation                                                             726,685 -   

Barbados Agricultural Management Co. Ltd - 6,808,074
Barbados Agricultural Society 6,000 713
Barbados Cane Industry Corporation 60,858         2,910,000
Ministry of Agriculture, Food, Fisheries 

and Water Resource Management             - 3,893,750

         793,543 13,612,537
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Agricultural Development Fund                                                          
Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

8. Loans receivable 

The loans at year end comprised:
Interest rate Outstanding balances

2014 2013 2014 2013
% % $ $

1 year 6.5-7.0 6.5-7.0 2,484,244 1,305,921
2 to 5 years 6.5-8.5 6.5-7.0 5,558,053 978,412
Over 5 years and up to 10 years 6.5-7.0 6.5-7.0 4,754,346 8,335,513
Over 10 years and up to 15 years 6.5 6.5-7.0     1,565,344 3,931,436

14,361,987 14,551,282
Less: Provision for loan losses    (4,377,030) (4,171,030)

    9,984,957 10,380,252

2014 2013
$ $

Provision for loan losses
Balance at January 1 4,171,030 4,171,030
Increase in provision                                                                 206,000 -

Balance at December 31       4,377,030        4,171,030

9. Taxation
2014 2013

$ $
Statement of Financial Position:
Withholding taxes refundable – year of income 2003          22,714 22,714

10. Grants disbursed

During the year, the following grants were disbursed:
2014 2013

$ $

           Barbados Agricultural Development and
              Marketing Corporation                                                             726,685 -   

Barbados Agricultural Management Co. Ltd - 6,808,074
Barbados Agricultural Society 6,000 713
Barbados Cane Industry Corporation 60,858         2,910,000
Ministry of Agriculture, Food, Fisheries 

and Water Resource Management             - 3,893,750

         793,543 13,612,537
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

11. Impairment losses

This amount is made up as follows: -
2014 2013

$ $

Decrease in equity provision (note 6)       - (33,334)
Increase in provision for loan losses (note 8)   206,000 -   

      
  206,000 (33,334)

12. Commitments

At the year end, the following commitments were outstanding:
2014 2013

$ $

Loans 607,497 511,183
Grants 1,818,363 2,545,048

2,425,860 3,056,231

13. Post statement of financial position event

Subsequent to the financial reporting date, a decision was made by the Management 
Committee to change the year end of the Fund to March 31. The change will apply to the
first accounting period from January 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016.

14. Financial risk management

a) Introduction and overview

The Fund has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

• credit risk
• liquidity risk
• market risk
• operational risk

This note presents information about the Fund’s exposure to each of the above risks, 
the objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk and the 
management of capital.

Risk management framework

The Management Committee has overall responsibility for the establishment and 
oversight of the Fund’s risk management framework.

The Fund’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks 
faced by the Fund, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks 
and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed 
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered.
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(expressed in Barbados dollars)

14. Financial risk management …continued

b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer or counterparty to a financial 
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the 
Fund’s loans and investment securities.

Management of credit risk

The Management Committee has delegated responsibility for the management of 
credit risk to the Enterprise Growth Fund Limited, a related party.

Impaired loans and securities

Impaired loans and securities are loans and securities for which the Fund determines 
that it is probable that it will be unable to collect all principal and interest due 
according to the contractual terms of the loans/securities agreement(s).

Past due but not impaired loans

Loans and securities where contractual interest or principal payments are past due 
but the Fund believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of 
security/collateral available and/or the stage of collection of amounts owed.

Allowances for impairment

The Fund monitors the aging and credit quality of each loan facility extended. 
Allowances are established on a per loan basis as set out in the Fund’s credit policy.

Write off policy

The Fund writes off a loan/security balance (and any related allowances for 
impairment) when it determines that the loans/securities are uncollectible. This 
determination is reached after considering information such as the occurrence of 
significant changes in the borrower’s/issuer’s financial position such that the 
borrower/issuer can no longer pay the obligation, or that proceeds from collateral will 
not be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure. 

The Fund holds collateral against loans in the form of mortgage debentures over 
property, bills of sale and/or personal or government guarantees.
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(expressed in Barbados dollars)

14. Financial risk management …continued

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations 
from its financial liabilities.

Management of liquidity risk

The Fund’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal 
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to 
the Fund’s reputation.

Management of liquidity at the Fund is the responsibility of the Enterprise Growth 
Fund Limited, a related party.

d) Market risk

Market risk encompasses liquidity risk and price risk, both of which arise in the 
normal course of business. Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may be unable to 
meet a financial commitment to a customer or creditor when due. Price risk is the 
risk to earnings that arises from changes in interest rates, commodity prices and 
their implied volatilities.

Management of market risk

Market risk is measured in accordance with established standards.

e) Exposure to interest rate risk

The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from 
fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of financial instruments because of 
a change in market interest rates. 

Interest rate risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps and by 
having pre-approved limits for repricing bands.

f) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of 
causes, associated with the Fund’s processes, personnel, technology and 
infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks 
such as those from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted 
standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Fund’s 
operations and are faced by all business entities.

The objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of 
financial losses and damage to the Fund’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness 
and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to 
address operational risk is assigned to the Enterprise Growth Fund Limited, a related 
party.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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15. Segment reporting

Segment reporting which conforms with International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 8 
distinguishes between two business segments – Commercial division and Developmental 
division and thus follows the Funds internal reporting structure.  The Commercial division 
encompasses those financing activities entered into with the main intention of profit 
generation while the Developmental division encompasses financial support of projects with a 
social emphasis.

2014
Segment information Commercial

$
Developmental

$
Total

$

Total revenue   577,056                -   577,056

Management fees
  

  699,232
               

           -
   

   699,232
Impairment losses - loans   206,000      -   206,000
Impairment losses - equity         -     - -
Other operating expenses    35,015                -      35,015

Total expenses 940,247
   

   - 940,247

Comprehensive loss (363,191)
  

  - (363,191)

Current assets   4,011,074                - 4,011,074
Non-current assets 9,988,604              - 9,988,604
Intersegment balances 110,276,124 (110,276,124)         -
Liabilities      600,662             -   600,662
Funds received (disbursed) 125,105,335 (102,481,484) 22,623,851
Accumulated deficit    (1,430,191)   (7,794,640) (9,224,831)
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15.      Segment reporting...continued

2013
Segment information Commercial

$
Developmental

$
Total

$

Total revenue   1,101,012                -   1,101,012

Management fees
  

  881,018
               

           -
   

   881,018
Impairment losses - loans   -      -   -
Impairment losses - equity         (33,334)     - (33,334)
Other operating expenses    69,773                -      69,773

Total expenses 917,457
   

   - 917,457

Net income (loss) 183,555
  

  - 183,555

Current assets   4,786,069                - 4,786,069
Non-current assets 10,383,899              - 10,383,899
Intersegment balances 109,482,581 (109,482,581)         -
Liabilities      614,214             -   614,216
Funds received (disbursed) 125,105,335 (101,687,941) 23,417,394
Accumulated deficit    (1,067,000)   (7,794,640) (8,861,640)
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             The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

 3

Disaster Relief Revolving Fund
Statement of Changes in Fund
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

Disaster Relief Retained
Fund Earnings Total

$ $ $

Balance at January 1, 2013 2,000,000      324,584        2,324,584     

Net income -                146,991        146,991        

Balance at December 31, 2013 2,000,000      471,575        2,471,575     

Net income -                102,477        102,477        

Balance at December 31, 2014 2,000,000      574,052        2,574,052     
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             The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

 4

Disaster Relief Revolving Fund
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

2014 2013
$ $

Revenue
Interest on deposits 75,543 90,474                  
Interest on loans 5,272 7,744                    

80,815 98,218                   

Expenses
Bank charges 152 -                       
Provision for loan losses (Note 4) (29,570) (55,642)                 
Professional fees 7,756 6,869                    

(21,662) (48,773)                  

Net income 102,477 146,991                 
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             The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

 5

Disaster Relief Revolving Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

2014 2013
$ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Net  income 102,477 146,991         
Adjustment for:
   Provision for loan losses (29,570) (55,642)          

Operating profit before working capital changes 72,907 91,349           
Decrease in interest receivable 3,191 69                 
Loans repaid 29,570 55,642           
Increase in accounts payable 587 295               
Increase in amounts due from related party (15,849) (385,206)        
Decrease in amounts due to related party - (271,525)        

Cash provided by (used in) generated from operations 90,406 (509,376)        

Net increase (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 90,406 (509,376)        

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 2,026,138 2,535,514       

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 2,116,544 2,026,138       

Represented by:
Cash 88,581 76,923           
Term deposits 2,027,963 1,949,215       

2,116,544 2,026,138        
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Disaster Relief Revolving Fund                                                          
Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

1. Establishment and purpose

The Disaster Relief Revolving Fund (hereinafter referred to as ‘The Fund’) was established in 
Barbados by the Minister of Finance and Economic Affairs in his Economic and Financial 
Policies dated December 7, 2004. Financial resources, as determined by the Minister of 
Agriculture, are paid into this Fund.  These financial resources are managed solely by the 
Agricultural Development Fund (ADF) and are used to provide agricultural producers, who 
have been affected by a disaster, with access to a revolving loan facility that offers lenient 
repayment terms, to assist in restoring their operations to their pre-disaster status.

The Fund’s operations commenced on April 01, 2005 when the first contribution was 
received.

2. Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board.  They are prepared 
under the historical cost convention. 

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting 
Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts 
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates.

Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the accrual basis 
for all interest bearing instruments using the effective yield method. Interest income from 
loans is not accrued if a loan becomes impaired. In subsequent periods, any interest received 
on impaired loans is accounted for on a cash basis. Interest income includes interest earned 
on term deposits.

Foreign currencies

Transactions arising during the year involving foreign currencies are converted at the rates 
prevailing on the dates the transactions occurred.  Differences arising from fluctuations in 
exchange rates are included in the statement of comprehensive income.

Taxation

The Fund is exempt from income tax under section 9 (1) (f) of the Income Tax Act, CAP 73.
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

2. Significant accounting policies …continued

Loans receivable and allowances for loan losses

Loans are categorised as originating loans and are carried at amortised cost.  These loans are 
secured by promissory notes.

A loan is considered to be impaired when principal and interest are past due ninety days or 
more, or, there is objective evidence that the Fund will not be able to collect all amounts due 
according to the contractual terms of the loan.  The amount of the provision is the difference 
between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount of the loan.  The recoverable 
amount of the loan is the present value of the expected cash flows discounted based on the 
interest rate at inception of the loan.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance.  Any subsequent 
amounts recovered are credited to the provision for loan losses in the statement of 
comprehensive income.

3. Cash and cash equivalents

This includes term deposits of $2,027,963 (2013 - $1,949,215) that were placed with 
financial institutions for a period of six months. The deposits earn interest at rates of 3.25%
per annum (2013 – 4%) and mature on March 25, 2015.

Principal Principal
2014 2013

Financial Institution Date of Maturity Interest rate $ $

Capita Financial   
Services Inc. March 25, 2015 3.25% 2,027,963 1,949,215

Cash      88,581 76,923

2,116,544 2,026,138

4. Loans receivable

Loans receivable are comprised as follows:

Interest Rate          Outstanding balances 
2014 2013

$ $

Loans Receivable 3% 287,109 316,679

Less: Provision for loan losses (287,109) (316,679)

Loans Receivable, net             - -   

Provision for Loan Losses
Balance at January 1 316,679 372,321
Decrease in provision     (29,570) (55,642)

Balance at December 31    287,109            316,679

7
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

5. Related party transactions

The Fund is administered by the Agricultural Development Fund.  At December 31, 2014 the 
Fund had a balance due from the Agricultural Development Fund of $401,055 (2013 –
$385,206).  This balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The Enterprise Growth Fund Limited serves as manager of, and provides disbursement and 
administrative assistance to, the Fund.  As a result of providing such services, the Enterprise 
Growth Fund Limited receives a management fee based on the value of the gross assets of 
the Fund, calculated quarterly and payable in arrears, at a rate of 0.5%.

Charges of $62,052 (2013 - $59,495) were incurred during the year in respect of
management fees payable to the Enterprise Growth Fund Limited for management services 
provided to the Disaster Relief Revolving Fund. These fees are borne out of the funds of the 
Agricultural Development Fund.

6. Commitments

At the year end, the Fund had $6,588 (2013 – $12,579) commitments outstanding as
follows:

2014 2013
$ $

Kelvin Phillips - 5,991
Trevor Mayers   6,588 6,588    

  6,588 12,579

7. Financial risk management

Fair value

The methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value of each class of financial 
instruments are as follows:

a) Cash and cash equivalents, withholding tax refundable, due from related party and
accounts payable.

Due to the short-term nature of these financial assets and liabilities their carrying values 
approximate their fair values.

b) Loans receivable

The rates of interest in the portfolio reflect market conditions and their carrying 
amounts, net of provision for loan losses, approximate their fair values.

Interest rate risk

The Fund invests in fixed interest rate securities and the loan interest rates are fixed by the 
Fund managers based on commercial banks’ prime rate. The Fund therefore can exert some 
measure of control over its exposure to interest rate risk, and so the risk is not considered to 
be significant.

8
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Notes to Financial Statements
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(expressed in Barbados dollars)

7. Financial risk management…continued

Credit risk

The Fund had no significant credit risk at the end of the financial year.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable 
securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit 
facilities.

9
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
To the Trustees of Industrial, Investment and Employment Fund 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Industrial, Investment and Employment Fund, 
which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2014, the statement of loss, changes 
in general fund and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Industrial, Investment and Employment Fund as of December 31, 2014, its financial performance and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Chartered Accountants 
Bridgetown, Barbados  
May 21, 2015 
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 
Statement of Loss  
 
For the year ended December 31, 2014 
with comparative figures for 2013 
 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 
 
  Notes 2014 2013 
Revenue    
 
Interest income  $  337,927  339,186 
 
Expenses 
Management fees   307,343 307,909 
Provision for loan losses 7  22,196 79,396 
Professional fees   21,956  18,394 
Bank charges    115  58 
 
    351,610  405,757 
 
Net loss  $  (13,683)  (66,571) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 
Statement of Changes in General Fund 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2014 
with comparative figures for 2013 
 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 
 
   Accumulated 
 Contribution Deficit Total 
 
 
 
Balances at December 31, 2012 $  15,000,000  (6,840,091)  8,159,909 
 
Net loss   -   (66,571)  (66,571) 
 
Balances at December 31, 2013 $  15,000,000  (6,906,662)  8,093,338 

 
Net loss   -   (13,683)  (13,683) 
 
Balances at December 31, 2014 $  15,000,000  (6,920,345)  8,079,655 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 
Statement of Cash Flows  
 
For the year ended December 31, 2014 
with comparative figures for 2013 
 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 
   2014 2013 
     
Cash flows from operating activities 
Net loss $ (13,683) (66,571) 
Adjustments for: 
Provision for loan losses   22,196 79,396 
Interest income   (337,927)  (339,186) 
Interest received  337,084  326,558 
 
 
Operating profit before working capital changes  7,670  197 
 
Decrease (increase) in loans receivable  659,990  (1,429,162) 
(Decrease) increase due to related parties (33,592) 6,811 
(Decrease) increase in deferred income (40,922) 40,922 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable  5,671  (3,044) 
  

Net cash from (used in) operating activities  598,817  (1,384,276) 
 
Cash flows from investing activities 
(Purchase) sale of short term investments  (28,223)  712,802 
 

Net cash (used in) from investing activities  (28,223)  712,802 
 
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 570,594 (671,474) 
 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  321,416  992,890 
 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $  892,010  321,416 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2014 
 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 

1. Incorporation and Principal Activities 
 
The Industrial, Investment and Employment Fund (“IIEF” or the “Fund”) began operations in Barbados on 
August 9, 2002 and was funded with an initial transfer from the Government of Barbados of $15 million.  
These contributions are used to provide financing to local manufacturers to enhance and expand the 
productive capacity of the manufacturing sector in order to improve the level of competitiveness and 
financial viability. A further contribution of $10 million was budgeted, however, this has not been realised 
as a result of the poor performance of the Fund. 
. 
The Fund is not a legal entity but functions as a segregated pool of funds and is managed by Enterprise 
Growth Fund Limited (the “Fund Manager” or “EGFL”). The principal place of business is Enterprise 
Growth Fund Limited, “Westgate”, Monteith Gardens Barbarees Hill, St. Michael. The Investment 
Committee and the Board of Directors of EGFL are ultimately responsible for the approval and ratification 
of loans issued by the Fund. 
 
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Trustees on May 21, 2015. 
 
 

2. Basis of Preparation 
 
(a) Statement of compliance 

 
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB).   
 

(b) Basis of measurement 
 

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments 
classified as available-for-sale investments. 
 

(c) Functional and presentation currency 
 

These financial statements are presented in Barbados dollars, which is the Fund’s functional currency. 
These values have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2014 
 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 
2. Basis of Preparation, (continued) 
 
(d)  Use of estimates and judgements 
 

The Fund makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. Estimates and judgments are 
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of 
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These accounting estimates 
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which 
the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

 
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 

 
(i) Provision for loan losses 
 

The provision for loan losses is estimated using discounted cash flow analysis. The Fund uses its 
judgment to select assumptions that reflect the expected timing and amount of future payments by 
customers and where applicable the expected net proceeds on realization of security.  

 
(ii) Fair market value of investments 
 

Fair value of a financial asset or liability is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal, or in its 
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Fund has access at the measurement date.   
The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. 

 
The Fund values instruments carried at fair value using quoted market prices, where available. 
Quoted market prices represent a Level 1 valuation. When quoted market prices are not available, 
the Fund maximizes the use of observable inputs within valuation models. When all significant 
inputs are observable, the valuation is classified as Level 2. Valuations that require the significant 
use of unobservable inputs are considered Level 3. 
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2014 
 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 

3. Significant Accounting Policies 
 
The significant accounting policies adopted by the Fund have been applied consistently to all periods 
presented in these financial statements. 

 
(a) Revenue recognition  

 
Interest on deposits 
Interest income on deposits represents interest earned on contractual agreements with financial 
institutions at agreed rates of interest. 

 
 Income from loans 

Income from loans is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.  
 
All interest accrued during the period has been recorded as income in the financial statements. 
Provisions for bad debts are recorded for clients in non-accrual status where there is evidence to support 
the fact that the loan is impaired.    
 

(b) Short term Investments 
 
Short term investments comprising term deposits are categorised as held to maturity and are carried at 
cost. 
 

(c) Provision for loan losses 
 
Specific provisions are made on an individual loan, where management is of the opinion that full 
collection is doubtful.   
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2014 
 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 

3. Significant Accounting Policies 
 
The significant accounting policies adopted by the Fund have been applied consistently to all periods 
presented in these financial statements. 

 
(a) Revenue recognition  

 
Interest on deposits 
Interest income on deposits represents interest earned on contractual agreements with financial 
institutions at agreed rates of interest. 

 
 Income from loans 

Income from loans is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.  
 
All interest accrued during the period has been recorded as income in the financial statements. 
Provisions for bad debts are recorded for clients in non-accrual status where there is evidence to support 
the fact that the loan is impaired.    
 

(b) Short term Investments 
 
Short term investments comprising term deposits are categorised as held to maturity and are carried at 
cost. 
 

(c) Provision for loan losses 
 
Specific provisions are made on an individual loan, where management is of the opinion that full 
collection is doubtful.   
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2014 
 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 

3. Significant Accounting Policies, (continued) 
 
(d) Impairment 

 
The carrying amounts of the Fund’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment.  If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. 
 
An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount.  Impairment losses are recognized in the Statement of Loss. 
 

(e) Related parties 
 

Parties are considered related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other 
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.  
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant 
influence.  Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.  Transactions between related 
parties are based on terms similar to those offered to non-related parties. 

 
 
4. Forthcoming new standards or amendment requirements:  
  
 Standards and interpretations adopted 
 

There were no new standards and amendments of standards adopted during the year ended December 
31, 2014. 
 

 New Standards and interpretations not yet adopted 
  

a) IFRS 7 – Financial Instrument Disclosures (Amendments), effective September 30, 2014 
b) IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments Classification and Measurement, effective January 1, 2018 
c) IFRS 15 – Revenue Contracts with Customers, effective January 1, 2017 
d) IAS 24 – Related Party Disclosures, effective July 1, 2014 
e) IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation, effective January 1, 2015 
f) IAS 39 – Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, effective January 1, 2014 
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2014 
 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 
5. Cash  
 

Cash comprise cash at bank: 
 
 2014 2013 
 
Cash  $  892,010  321,416 
 
 $  892,010  321,416 
 
 

6. Short Term Investments 
 

These are held to maturity investments with a maturity period of 6 months.  At the reporting date the 
effective interest rate range was from 1.80% per annum to 1.85% per annum (2013: 2.3% per annum).  
Short term investments with original maturity dates of 90 days or less have been classified as cash 
equivalents. 
 

 
7. Loans, Bonds and Lines of Credit Receivable - Net 
 

 2014 2013 
 
Loans $ 7,153,632 7,816,580 
Bonds  200,000 200,000 
Revolving lines of credit   1,249,358  1,246,400 
 
 $  8,602,990  9,262,980 
Less Provision: 
Balance, beginning of year $  2,776,622  2,697,226 
Increase in provision for loan losses   22,196  79,396 
 
 $  2,798,818  2,776,622 
 
Balance, end of year $  5,804,172  6,486,358 
 

 At December 31, 2014 the maturity profile of loans is as follows: 
 
   Years to maturity   
 Up to  One to  Over  Total  Total 
 1 yr  5 yrs  5 Yrs  2014  2013 
 

Business Sector $ 3,177,116  780,744 4,645,130 8,602,990  9,262,980 
 

 Less allowance for loan losses (2,798,818)  (2,776,622) 
 
   $  5,804,172  6,486,358 
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2014 
 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 
7. Loans, Bonds and Lines of Credit Receivable - Net, (continued) 

 
The interest rate applicable to the loans and lines of credit receivable ranged from 5.50% - 6.5% at the 
end of 2014 (2013: 5.50% - 6.50%). The annual interest rate applicable to all bonds was 10% for 2014 
(2013: 10%). 
 
The maximum loan allowed is the greater of $2,000,000 and 8% of the total capitalisation balance of the 
Fund. Loans with repayment periods of five (5) years or less will be granted a grace period limited to one 
(1) year (the period during which only interest payments are due and payable). For loans with repayment 
periods in excess of five (5) years, but less than or equal to ten (10) years, the grace period will be two 
(2) years.  Loans with a repayment period in excess of ten (10) years, the grace period will be for three 
(3) years.  The grace period is limited to the length of the contract for construction or installation.  Loans 
receivable include revolving lines of credit which are due on demand. 
 
Security is by way of first or second legal mortgages on property(ies) owned by the borrower(s). 

 
When a loan/bond is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance and subsequent 
recoveries are credited to the provision for loan losses in the Statement of Loss.  As at the reporting 
date, interest not recognised in respect of delinquent loans amounted to $1,291,432 (2013: $1,086,302). 

 
 
8. Due to Related Parties 
 

 2014 2013 
 
Enterprise Growth Fund Limited $ 76,229 89,322 
Agricultural Development Fund   -   20,499 
 
 $  76,229  109,821 
 
 
Due to related parties consists mainly of management fees charged during the course of the financial 
year in accordance with the provisions of separate agreements between Enterprise Growth Fund Limited 
(EGFL) and the Trustees of the Fund using contractual rates.  
 
These related party transactions are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length 
transactions only if those terms can be substantiated. The amounts are unsecured, interest free and 
have no fixed terms of repayment. 
 
 

9. Commitments 
 

At the reporting date, there were no loans approved which have not been disbursed (2013: $ NIL). 
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2014 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 
10. Corporation Tax 

 
Corporation tax has not been provided for in these financial statements since the Fund is exempt from 
payment of tax in accordance with Income Tax Act Cap 73 which exempts entities whose funds have 
been provided by Government and used for purposes of promoting the development of sectors of the 
economy.  
 
 

11. Post Balance Sheet Events 
 

 Subsequent to the reporting date, the decision was made by the Trustees to change the year-end of the 
Fund to March 31. This will be effected from March 2016. 

 
 
12. Financial Risk Management 
  
 Introduction and overview 

The Fund has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

 credit risk 

 liquidity risk 

 market risk 

 operational risk 

 
This note presents information about the Fund’s exposure to each of the above risks, the objectives, 
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk and the management of capital. 
 
Risk Management Framework 
 
The Trustees of the Fund have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Fund’s 
risk management framework.  Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks 
faced by the Fund, in order to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and the 
adherence to limits.  These policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market 
conditions, products and services offered. 
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2014 
 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 
12. Financial Risk Management, (continued) 

 
 Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a borrower or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Fund’s loans, interest receivable and its 
investments. 

    
Loans receivable 
The Fund’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each borrower.  
A loan provisioning policy has been implemented and all borrowers are categorized according to their 
credit risk profile.  These assessments, which involve ascertaining the clients’ ability to service their 
existing liabilities as well as the value of their securitised assets, are used in order to determine the 
extent of credit risk.  

 
Management of credit risk 
The Fund employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk relating to loans receivable, by 
the taking of security whose value approximates the quantum of funds advanced. The principal collateral 
types for loans are:  
 

 Mortgages over residential/commercial properties 
 Charges over business assets/bill of sale 
 Personal guarantees 
 Hypothecation of deposit balances 

 
Exposure to credit risk 
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.  The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was: 
 
 Carrying Amount 
 
 2014 2013 
 
Loans, bonds and lines of credit receivable $ 5,804,172 6,486,358 
Cash  892,010  321,416 
Investments  1,312,464  1,284,241 
 
Total $  8,008,646  8,092,015 
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2014 
 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 
12. Financial Risk Management, (continued) 
 
 Credit quality by class of financial assets 
 
 Loans Receivable 

The credit quality of loans and advances is managed though the prudent underwriting principles 
established by management. 
 
Cash and balances with financial institutions 
The credit quality of financial institutions holding the Fund’s cash resources is assessed by the level of 
credit worthiness and by comparison to other financial institutions. The Fund only places its cash 
resources with reputable financial institutions. 

 
The tables below show the credit quality analysis of financial assets:  

    
   2014    
 
  Neither Past due Past due but  Individually  
  Nor impaired not impaired Impaired Total 
  
Cash Resources $  892,010 -  -   892,010 
Financial investments:  
Held to maturity 1,312,464 -  -   1,312,464 
Loans receivable  2,587,660  3,163,432  2,851,898   8,602,990 
 
   4,792,134  3,163,432  2,851,898 10,807,464 
 
 
 
   2013    
 
  Neither Past due Past due but  Individually  
  Nor impaired not impaired Impaired Total 
  
Cash resources $  321,416  -  -    321,416 
Financial investments:  
Held to maturity 1,284,241 -  -  1,284,241 
Loans receivable  5,226,027  1,207,250  2,829,703  9,262,980 
 
   6,831,684  1,207,250  2,829,703  10,868,637 
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2014 
 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 

12. Financial Risk Management, (continued) 
 
Impairment Assessment 
 
Impaired loans and securities 
Impaired loans and securities are loans and securities for which management determines that it is 
probable that it will be unable to collect all principal and interest due according to the contractual terms of 
the loans/securities agreement(s). 

  
Past due but not impaired loans 
Loans and securities where contractual interest or principal payments are past due but management 
believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of security/collateral available and/or 
the stage of collection of amounts owed. 
 
Allowances for impairment 
Management monitors the aging and credit quality of each loan facility extended through the monthly 
preparation of a delinquency report.  Allowances are established on a per loan basis as set in the Fund’s 
Loan Provisioning Policy. 
 
Concentration of credit risk 
Concentration of credit risk exists if a number of borrowers are engaged in similar activities or are 
located in the same industry sector or have similar economic characteristics such that their ability to 
meet contractual obligations would be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other 
conditions.  Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Fund’s performance to 
developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location.  Management does not believe that 
the concentration is unusual or provides undue risks. 
 
 

 Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from its financial 
liabilities. 
 
Management of Liquidity Risk  
Management’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Fund’s reputation. This has been facilitated by 
using a computerised management system which tracks the quantum of funds available for lending and 
other expenditure. 
 

 Analysis of financial liabilities  
The financial liabilities of the Fund, based on their earliest possible contractual maturity, are due within 
30 days (2013 – 30 days). 
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2014 
 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 

12. Financial Risk Management, (continued) 
 
 Market risk 
 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and 
equity prices will affect the Fund’s income or the value of its holding of financial instruments.  The 
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 
parameters, while optimizing the return on the investment. 
 
Management of Market Risks 
Frequent reviews and monitoring of cash resources are conducted by management in order to minimise 
instances of market risk in accordance with the Fund’s Short Term Investment Policy. Further 
considerations are made relating to the level of concentration of company resources in financial 
institutions. 

 
 Exposure to currency risk 

 Currency risk is the potential risk of loss from fluctuating foreign exchange rates when an investor has 
exposure to foreign currency or in foreign-currency-traded investments. The Fund had no significant 
exposure to currency risk at the end of the financial year. 
 
Exposure to interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk of loss from the fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of financial 
instruments because of a change in market interest rates. It arises when there is a mismatch between 
the interest-bearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities, which are subject to interest rate adjustments, 
within a specified period. 
 
An interest rate sensitivity analysis was performed to determine the impact on total loss of reasonable 
possible changes in interest rates prevailing at December 31, 2014, with all other variables held 
constant. The impact is illustrated and shown in the table below: 
 
Increase/(decrease) of 100 bps 2014 2013 
 
Impact on comprehensive income +100 bps $ 58,573 61,670 
Impact on comprehensive income – 100 bps (58,573) (61,670) 
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2014 
 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 

12. Financial Risk Management, (continued) 
 
 Operational risk 

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes, associated with 
the Fund’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than 
credit, market and liquidity risks such as those from legal and regulatory requirements and generally 
accepted standards of corporate behaviour.  Operational risks arise from all of the Fund’s operations and 
are faced by all business entities. 
 
The objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and 
damage to the Fund’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that 
restrict initiative and creativity. The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of 
controls to address operational risk is delegated to the management of the Fund. 

 
 Financial income 
 
  2014 2013 
 
 Interest income on loans, bonds and lines of credit $ 296,855 298,526 
 Interest income on cash and short term deposits  25,299  40,660 
 
 Financial income $  322,154  339,186 
 
  
 
13. Fair Value Disclosures of Financial Instruments 
 

Fair value amounts represent the approximate values at which financial instruments could be exchanged 
in current transactions between willing parties.  There is no available trading market for these financial 
instruments and therefore, it is not possible to determine independently the estimated fair values.  The 
fair values of financial instruments are considered to approximate their book values. 
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
December 31, 2014 
 
(Amounts in Barbados Dollars) 
 
 
13. Fair Value Disclosures of Financial Instruments, (continued)  

 
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the Statement of 
Financial Position are as follows: 

 
  2014 2014 2013 2013 
  Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value 
 
 Cash and cash equivalents  892,010 892,010 321,416 321,416 
 Investments  1,312,464 1,312,464 1,284,241 1,284,241 
 Loans, bonds, LOC receivable- net 5,804,172 5,804,172 6,486,358 6,486,358 
 Interest receivable 39,775 39,775 38,932 38,932 
 Accounts payable (21,375) (21,375) (15,704) (15,704) 
 Due to related parties -  -  (109,821) (109,821) 
  

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy 
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial 
instruments by valuation technique: 

 
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets of liabilities. 
 
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the 
statement of financial position date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and 
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory 
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s 
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid 
price. These instruments are included in Level 1. 

 
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value 
are observable, either directly or indirectly 
 
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise 
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific 
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is 
included in Level 2. 

 
 Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are 

not based on observable market data. 
 
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included 
in Level 3. 
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INDUSTRIAL, INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT FUND 
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13. Fair Value Disclosures of Financial Instruments, (continued)  

 
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the Statement of 
Financial Position are as follows: 

 
  2014 2014 2013 2013 
  Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value 
 
 Cash and cash equivalents  892,010 892,010 321,416 321,416 
 Investments  1,312,464 1,312,464 1,284,241 1,284,241 
 Loans, bonds, LOC receivable- net 5,804,172 5,804,172 6,486,358 6,486,358 
 Interest receivable 39,775 39,775 38,932 38,932 
 Accounts payable (21,375) (21,375) (15,704) (15,704) 
 Due to related parties -  -  (109,821) (109,821) 
  

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy 
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial 
instruments by valuation technique: 

 
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets of liabilities. 
 
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the 
statement of financial position date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and 
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory 
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s 
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid 
price. These instruments are included in Level 1. 

 
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value 
are observable, either directly or indirectly 
 
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise 
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific 
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is 
included in Level 2. 

 
 Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are 

not based on observable market data. 
 
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included 
in Level 3. 
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14. Capital Management Policy 
 

Management’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain creditor and market 
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.  There were no changes in management’s 
approach to capital management during the year. 

 
 

.  
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             The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

 5

The Innovation Fund
Statement of Changes in Fund
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

Innovation Accumulated
Fund Deficit Total

$ $ $

Balance at December 31, 2012 4,503,121 (2,588,568) 1,914,553

Grants disbursed - competition expenses (Note 7) (42,148) - (42,148)

Net loss for the year - (84,663) (84,663)

Balance at December 31, 2013 4,460,973 (2,673,231) 1,787,742

Grants disbursed - competition expenses (Note 7) (155,870) - (155,870)

Transfer from Export, Promotion & Marketing Fund 250,000 - 250,000

Net loss for the year - (88,690) (88,690)

Balance at December 31, 2014 4,555,103 (2,761,921) 1,793,182
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The Innovation Fund
Statement of Comprehensive Loss
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

2014 2013
$ $

Revenue
Interest income 28,729 36,677            
Other income 1,409 -                 

30,138 36,677            

Expenses
Bank charges 186 76                  
Investment committee fees and meeting expenses 3,150 6,700             
Management fees 109,212 109,064          
Professional fees 6,280 5,500             

118,828 121,340          

Net loss and total comprehensive loss for the year (88,690) (84,663)          
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 7

The Innovation Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

2014 2013
$ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss for the year (88,690) (84,663)          

Operating loss before working capital adjustments: (88,690) (84,663)          
Decrease in interest receivable 2,133 1,472             
Decrease in accounts payable and accruals (1,650) (3,422)            
Increase (decrease) in due to related party 414 (1,571)            

Net cash used in operating activities (87,793) (88,184)          

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments (19,310) (84,609)          

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants disbursed - competition expenses (155,870) (42,148)          
Transfer from Export, Promotion & Marketing Fund 250,000 -                 

Net cash from (used in) financing activities 94,130 (42,148)          

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (12,973) (214,941)         

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 908,851 1,123,792       

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year (Note 3) 895,878 908,851          
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 7

The Innovation Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

2014 2013
$ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss for the year (88,690) (84,663)          

Operating loss before working capital adjustments: (88,690) (84,663)          
Decrease in interest receivable 2,133 1,472             
Decrease in accounts payable and accruals (1,650) (3,422)            
Increase (decrease) in due to related party 414 (1,571)            

Net cash used in operating activities (87,793) (88,184)          

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments (19,310) (84,609)          

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants disbursed - competition expenses (155,870) (42,148)          
Transfer from Export, Promotion & Marketing Fund 250,000 -                 

Net cash from (used in) financing activities 94,130 (42,148)          

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (12,973) (214,941)         

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 908,851 1,123,792       

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year (Note 3) 895,878 908,851          

The Innovation Fund                                                          
Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

1. Establishment and purpose

The Innovation Fund was established for the purpose of providing funding and technical 
assistance to small and emerging innovative enterprises to properly develop a concept or 
product and to develop the business to the stage where it can obtain the additional financing 
needed to commercialize the concept or product fully.  It was funded by Bds$5,000,000 
transferred by the Crown to Trustees under a Deed of Trust, dated October 2002. The Fund 
commenced operations on January 15, 2003.

2. Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board.  They are prepared 
under the historical cost convention. 

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting 
Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts 
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates.

Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognised in the income statement on the accrual basis for all interest 
bearing instruments using the effective yield method. Interest income includes interest 
earned on time deposits.

Taxation

The fund is exempt from income tax under Section 9 (1) (f) of the Income Tax Act, Cap.73.

Term deposits with bank

These are call and fixed deposits with original maturity dates of 90 days or less.

Equity Investments

Equity investments are initially recorded at cost, being the fair value consideration given, and 
include acquisition charges associated with the investments. These are privately held 
unquoted equity investments.  They are carried at cost based on available information and do 
not necessarily represent the amount that might ultimately be realised, since such amounts 
depend on future circumstances.  Because of the inherent uncertainties of valuation, the 
assigned values may differ significantly from the values that would have been used, had 
more current information been available, and the difference could be material.

8
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The Innovation Fund                                                          
Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

3. Cash and cash equivalents

Term deposits
There are term deposits held with CAPITA Financial Services Inc. The terms are set out
hereunder. 

Date of Maturity Interest Rate             2014 2013 
              $ $ 

Term Deposit January 29, 2015 3.00%      676,028 -  
Term Deposit       January 29, 2014             3.75%               -       870,508

676,028 870,508
Current account
Cash at bank – RBC Royal Bank (Barbados) Limited       219,850         38,343  

   895,878  908,851

4. Investments 

The Fund has invested in 8% cumulative, redeemable, Class A preferred shares at $1 per 
share in the following companies and these have been fully provided for in the financials: 

a) Ajeland Investments Inc. – 250,000 shares
These are participating shares which are redeemable no later than January 31, 2008 at a 
price no lower than $1.47 per share.  Any dividends not paid within 12 calendar months 
of their due date, may be converted into additional Class A shares at the price of $1.00 
per share. 

b) Birds Eye Music Inc. – 250,000 shares
These shares are to be redeemed no later than October 31, 2009 at a price no lower
than $1.47 per share.

c) Country Style Woodwork Inc. – 250,000 shares
These shares are to be redeemed no later than September 28, 2015 at a price no lower 
than $1.60 per share.

d) Gold Coast Records Inc. – 250,000 shares
These shares are to be redeemed no later than November 28, 2014 at a price no lower 
than $1.60 per share.

The Fund has committed to invest in 8% cumulative, redeemable, Class A preferred shares at 
$1 per share in the following companies:

a) Advanced Energy Systems Inc. – 205,000 shares
These shares are to be redeemed no later than the fifth anniversary of the development 
of a commercially viable device at the higher of a price that provides a 12% internal rate 
of return and a price derived by multiplying the sum of the company’s net income for the 
three most recent years by seven, then dividing that figure by the number of shares 
outstanding.

9 
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The Innovation Fund                                                          
Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

3. Cash and cash equivalents

Term deposits
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three most recent years by seven, then dividing that figure by the number of shares 
outstanding.
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The Innovation Fund                                                          
Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

4. Investments…continued

b) Coral Isle Food Products Ltd. – 210,000 shares
These shares are to be redeemed no later than July 31, 2014 at a price no lower than 
$1.88 per share.

c) Hit Island Inc.  – 250,000 shares
These shares are to be redeemed no later than February 28, 2019 at a price no lower 
than $2.10 per share.

d) Harewood’s Tropical Foods Inc. – 180,000 shares
These shares are to be redeemed no later than January 28, 2016 at a price no lower
than $1.55 per share.

e) Country Style Woodwork Inc. – 60,000 shares
These shares are to be redeemed no later than July 28, 2017 at a price no lower than 
$1.60 per share.

The Fund has invested in 10% cumulative, redeemable, Class A preferred shares at $2 per 
share in the following company:

a) Hit for Six Inc. – 125,000 shares
These shares are to be redeemed no later than December 31, 2011 at a price no lower 
than $3.20 per share.

The Fund has invested in 10% cumulative, redeemable, Class A preferred shares at $1 per 
share in the following companies:

a) Melange Production Inc. – 210,000 shares
These shares are to be redeemed no later than December 31, 2013 at a price no lower
than $1.75 per share.

b) Abus Technology Inc. – 200,000 shares
These shares are to be redeemed no later than May 31, 2014 at a price no lower than 
$1.75 per share.

The Fund has invested in cumulative, redeemable, Class A preferred shares at $1 per share in 
the following company:

a) Smart Tie Inc. – 31,000 shares 
These shares are to be redeemed no later than April 30, 2008, with a 5% royalty on 
sales revenue once the investment remains with the fund.

b) Fifth Element Designs  – 20,000 shares
These shares shall pay a dividend of 10% per share per annum. These shares are to be             
redeemed no later than July 31, 2018 at a price no lower than $1.00 per share. 

10
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The Innovation Fund                                                          
Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

4. Investments… continued 

At year end, the Fund had approved investments totalling $3,869,035. Approximately 
$2,247,234 of this total has been disbursed to date. The investment balances are listed as 
follows:

2014 2013
$ $

Abus Technology Inc. 200,000   200,000
Advanced Energy Systems 82,449 82,449
Ajeland Investments Inc. 249,600 249,600
Birds Eye Music Inc. 250,000 250,000
Coral Isle Food Products Ltd.     241,720          241,720
Fifth Element Designs Inc.                                                             20,000 20,000
Harewood’s Tropical Foods Inc. 2,782               2,782
Country Style Woodwork Inc. 250,000           250,000
Country Style Woodwork Inc.       56,017              36,707
Gold Coast Records Inc. 250,000      250,000
Hit For Six Inc. 250,000 250,000
Hit Island Inc. 91,628 91,628
Melange Productions Inc. 210,000 210,000
Smart Tie Inc. 31,000 31,000

2,185,196 2,165,886

Less: provision for impairment of investments:

Abus Technology Inc. (200,000) (200,000)
Advanced Energy Systems (82,449) (82,449)
Ajeland Investments Inc. (249,600) (249,600)
Birds Eye Music Inc. (250,000)   (250,000)
Hit For Six Inc.      (250,000) (250,000)
Melange Productions Inc.      (210,000) (210,000)             
Smart Tie Inc (31,000) (31,000)

(1,273,049) (1,273,049)

912,147    892,837

Based on a review of the investments portfolio, management has made a provision for the 
impairment of investments. A 100% provision has been made for Abus Technology Inc., 
Advance Energy Systems, Ajeland Investments Inc., Birds Eye Music Inc., Hit For Six Inc., 
Melange Productions Inc. and Smart Tie Inc. 

11
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The Innovation Fund                                                          
Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

4. Investments… continued 

At year end, the Fund had approved investments totalling $3,869,035. Approximately 
$2,247,234 of this total has been disbursed to date. The investment balances are listed as 
follows:

2014 2013
$ $
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Advanced Energy Systems 82,449 82,449
Ajeland Investments Inc. 249,600 249,600
Birds Eye Music Inc. 250,000 250,000
Coral Isle Food Products Ltd.     241,720          241,720
Fifth Element Designs Inc.                                                             20,000 20,000
Harewood’s Tropical Foods Inc. 2,782               2,782
Country Style Woodwork Inc. 250,000           250,000
Country Style Woodwork Inc.       56,017              36,707
Gold Coast Records Inc. 250,000      250,000
Hit For Six Inc. 250,000 250,000
Hit Island Inc. 91,628 91,628
Melange Productions Inc. 210,000 210,000
Smart Tie Inc. 31,000 31,000

2,185,196 2,165,886

Less: provision for impairment of investments:

Abus Technology Inc. (200,000) (200,000)
Advanced Energy Systems (82,449) (82,449)
Ajeland Investments Inc. (249,600) (249,600)
Birds Eye Music Inc. (250,000)   (250,000)
Hit For Six Inc.      (250,000) (250,000)
Melange Productions Inc.      (210,000) (210,000)             
Smart Tie Inc (31,000) (31,000)
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Based on a review of the investments portfolio, management has made a provision for the 
impairment of investments. A 100% provision has been made for Abus Technology Inc., 
Advance Energy Systems, Ajeland Investments Inc., Birds Eye Music Inc., Hit For Six Inc., 
Melange Productions Inc. and Smart Tie Inc. 
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

5. Due to related party

At December 31, 2014, there was an amount of $25,421 (2013 – $25,007) due to the
Enterprise Growth Fund Limited. This balance is unsecured, interest-free and is repayable on
demand.

Related party transactions

The Enterprise Growth Fund Limited serves as manager of, and provides disbursement and
administrative assistance to, the Fund.  As a result of providing such services, the Enterprise
Growth Fund Limited receives a management fee based on the value of the average gross
assets of the Fund, calculated quarterly and payable in arrears, at a rate of 0.75% per
quarter.

Charges of $109,212 (2013 - $109,064) were incurred during the year in respect of
management fees payable to the Enterprise Growth Fund Limited.

6. Commitments

At year end, the following commitments in respect of investments were outstanding.

2014 2013 
$ $ 

Coral Isle Food Products Ltd. 49,629 49,629
Country Style Woodwork Inc. 3,983  23,293
iLand Guide      60,000 60,000
Harewood’s Tropical Foods Inc. (formerly Pato Tropi-Foods) 177,218 177,218

290,830 310,140

7. Special grants

The Fund administers and finances The National Innovation Competition to develop creative
thinking to produce viable innovative projects that have the best chance of realizing
commercial success. From 2008 income year, the Board of Trustees resolved to treat the
expenses for this competition as grants. Such grants when disbursed are recognised in the
accounts as a reduction in the equity of the Fund.

2014 2013 
$ $ 

Grants disbursed – competition expenses 155,870 42,148

12
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The Innovation Fund                                                          
Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

8.        Financial risk management

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value amounts represents estimates of the consideration that would be agreed upon 
between knowledgeable, willing parties who are under no compulsion to act and is best 
evidenced by a quoted market value, if one exists. The methods and assumptions used to 
estimate fair value of each class of financial instruments are as follows:

a) Cash, term deposits, interest receivable, accounts payable and due to related party

Due to the short-term nature of these financial assets and liabilities, their carrying 
values approximate their fair values.

b) Equity Investments

These are carried at cost since their fair values cannot be reasonably determined.

Interest rate risk

The Fund invests in fixed interest rate securities, as disclosed in Note 3, and so this risk is 
not considered to be significant.

Credit risk

The amount of the Fund’s exposure to credit risk is indicated by the carrying amount of its 
financial assets.  These include cash, term deposits and interest receivable from these 
deposits, all of which are placed with a reputable bank and financial institution. All of the
deposits were held with one financial institution at December 31, 2013.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from its 
financial liabilities.  

The Fund’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible that it will always 
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Fund’s reputation.

Management of liquidity at the Fund is the responsibility of the Enterprise Growth Fund 
Limited, a related party.

13
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014
(expressed in Barbados dollars)

8.        Financial risk management

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value amounts represents estimates of the consideration that would be agreed upon 
between knowledgeable, willing parties who are under no compulsion to act and is best 
evidenced by a quoted market value, if one exists. The methods and assumptions used to 
estimate fair value of each class of financial instruments are as follows:

a) Cash, term deposits, interest receivable, accounts payable and due to related party

Due to the short-term nature of these financial assets and liabilities, their carrying 
values approximate their fair values.

b) Equity Investments

These are carried at cost since their fair values cannot be reasonably determined.

Interest rate risk

The Fund invests in fixed interest rate securities, as disclosed in Note 3, and so this risk is 
not considered to be significant.

Credit risk

The amount of the Fund’s exposure to credit risk is indicated by the carrying amount of its 
financial assets.  These include cash, term deposits and interest receivable from these 
deposits, all of which are placed with a reputable bank and financial institution. All of the
deposits were held with one financial institution at December 31, 2013.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from its 
financial liabilities.  

The Fund’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible that it will always 
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Fund’s reputation.

Management of liquidity at the Fund is the responsibility of the Enterprise Growth Fund 
Limited, a related party.

13



134



135

Corporate Information 136

Independent Auditors’ Report 137

Statement of Financial Position 138

Statement of Comprehensive Loss 139

Statement of Changes in Fund 140

Statement of Cash Flows 141

Notes to the Financial Statements 142 - 148



136
Page 1 of 13

SMALL HOTELS INVESTMENT FUND

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Investment Committee

Ms Shelley Carrington - Chairman and representative of Ministry of Tourism (resigned effective Dec 31, 2014)
Mrs. Donna Cadogan - Chairman and representative of Ministry of Tourism (started effective Jan 1, 2015)
Miss Debbie-Anne Jemmott - Representative of Enterprise Growth Fund Limited
Mr Timothy Simmons - Representative of Enterprise Growth Fund Limited
Ms Renee Coppin - Representative of Small Hotels of Barbados Inc
Mr Denis Tull - Representative of Small Hotels of Barbados Inc

Fund Manager

Enterprise Growth Fund Limited

Bankers

RBC Royal Bank Barbados Limited Republic Bank Barbados Limited
Bridgetown Bridgetown
St Michael St Michael

Capita Financial Services Inc First Citizens Investment Services (Barbados) Limited
Whitepark Road Warrens
St. Michael St. Michael

Auditors

Francina Downey & Co
Chartered Accountants
Medford Complex
Whitehall
St Michael
BARBADOS



137

Medford Complex
Whitehall

St. Michael, Barbados, W.I.
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Page 2 of 13

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Investment Committee of Small Hotels Investment Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Small Hotels Investment Fund, which comprise the
Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2014, and the Statement of Comprehensive Loss, Statement of
Changes in Fund and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Small Hotels
Investment Fund as at December 31, 2014, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 7 to the financial statements indicating that the Fund has defaulted on its obligation to
commence payments in December 2010 toward the loan payable to the Government of Barbados resulting in that loan
becoming fully repayable. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Chartered Accountants
May 22, 2015
Bridgetown, Barbados
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(Expressed in Barbados Dollars)

NOTES 2014 2013
$ $

INCOME
Interest income 1,186,989 1,151,611

EXPENSES
Management fees (5) 1,070,651 1,068,853
Interest expense 866,420 845,159
Professional fees 10,412 10,340
Bank charges 119 145
Provision for loan losses (2e) & (4) - 137,467

1,947,602 2,061,964

NET OPERATING LOSS (760,613) (910,353)

OTHER EXPENSES
Withholding tax (188,148) -

NET (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (948,761) (910,353)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

SMALL HOTELS INVESTMENT FUND

Page 4 of 13
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(Expressed in Barbados Dollars)

NOTES Capital Accumulated Total
Contribution Losses

$ $ $

Balances as at December 31, 2012 9,359,920 (4,623,933) 4,735,987

Contribution from Government 3,651,000 - 3,651,000

Grants disbursed (186,581) - (186,581)

Net Loss for the year - (910,353) (910,353)

Balances as at December 31, 2013 12,824,339 (5,534,286) 7,290,053

Grants disbursed (9,419) - (9,419)

Net Loss for the year - (948,761) (948,761)

Balances as at December 31, 2014 12,814,920 (6,483,047) 6,331,873

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

SMALL HOTELS INVESTMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND

Page 5 of 13
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(Expressed in Barbados Dollars)

2014 2013
$ $

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net loss for the year (948,761) (910,353)

Adjustments for:
Interest income (1,186,989) (1,151,611)
Provision for loan losses - 137,467

Deficit before Working Capital Changes (2,135,750) (1,924,497)

Working Capital Changes:
(Increase) in loans receivable (210,245) (2,808,855)
Decrease in withholding tax recoverable 188,148 -
Increase in interest payable 866,420 845,159
(Decrease) in due to related party - (1,102,000)
(Decrease) / increase in accounts payable (19,959) 3,311
Cash used in Operations (1,311,386) (4,986,882)

Net cash used in Operating Activities (1,311,386) (4,986,882)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of short term investments (536,828) (87,069)
Net cash used in Investing Activities (536,828) (87,069)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Interest received 1,223,348 1,138,954
Government contribution - 3,651,000
Grants disbursed (9,419) (186,581)
Net cash provided by Financing Activities 1,213,929 4,603,373

Decrease in cash (634,285) (470,578)

Cash - beginning of year 6,087,350 6,557,928
Cash - end of year 5,453,065 6,087,350

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Short term deposits 5,006,875 4,847,080
Cash at bank 446,190 1,240,270

5,453,065 6,087,350

SMALL HOTELS INVESTMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Page 6 of 13
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SMALL HOTELS INVESTMENT FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Expressed in Barbados Dollars)

Page 7 of 13

NOTE: 1 STRUCTURE & PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Small Hotels Investment Fund (SHIF) is a Fund which was established by the Government of Barbados and
began operations on May 27, 1999 in Barbados.  SHIF is not a separate legal entity but functions as a segregated
pool of funds.

The objective of the Fund is to assist small hotels with marketing, management, procurement of joint services and
refurbishment, in order to improve their revenue-earning capacity and operational efficiency.

The beneficiaries of SHIF are restricted to the Small Hotels of Barbados Inc. (SHBI) and also its members whose
properties comply with the minimum standards established by the European Travel Trade.

SHIF seeks to finance projects that clearly demonstrate that they will enhance the financial viability and operational
performance of the small hotels sector.

The Fund consists of a combination of a loan and capital contributions received from Government.

SHIF is overseen by an Investment Committee which comprises five members. Two members represent the
Enterprise Growth Fund Limited, two members represent SHBI and one member represents the Ministry of Tourism
and International Transport. The operations of the Fund are managed by Enterprise Growth Fund Limited.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the members on May 22, 2015.

NOTE: 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)   Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared in Barbados dollars on the historic cost basis in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).  IFRS
incorporate all International Accounting Standards (IAS) and interpretations issued by its predecessor body, the
International Accounting Standards Committee.  The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities and
contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the balance sheet date and the income and expenses for the year then
ended.  Actual amounts could differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

(b)   New Standards and interpretations not yet adopted:
There are a number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for
the year ended December 31, 2014 and have not yet been applied in preparing these financial statements.

(c)   Cash and short term deposits
Cash and short term deposits comprise cash on hand, cash at bank and call and fixed deposits with original maturity
dates of 90 days or less.
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SMALL HOTELS INVESTMENT FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Expressed in Barbados Dollars)

Page 8 of 13

NOTE: 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, cont'd

(d)   Loans receivable
Interest income from loans is recognised as it accrues.  Loans are placed on a non-accrual basis when there is
reasonable doubt regarding the collectability of principal and interest or when principal and/or interest payments are
ninety days or more in arrears.  Upon classification of a loan to a non-accrual basis, any previously accrued but
unpaid interest thereon is reversed against the current period.  Interest is only accrued to the extent that unpaid
interest is paid and total accrued interest does not exceed one hundred and eighty (180) days.  In subsequent
periods, interest received on non-accrual loans is recorded as income only if management has determined that the
loans do not require specific provisions, otherwise all amounts are credited to principal.

(e)   Provision for loan losses
Specific provisions are made on an individual basis, where management is of the opinion that collection is doubtful.

(f)   Revenue recognition
Interest income from investments is accounted for on an accrual basis.

(g)   Deferred income
The loan from Government carries a low interest rate. Accordingly, the saving on the interest expense as compared to
what it would be at the applicable market rate constitutes income. This income will be recognised on a systematic
basis using the effective interest method over the period of the loan when it is being repaid.

(h)   Impairment
The carrying amounts of the Fund's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment.  If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

(i)   Taxation
Small Hotels Investment Fund (SHIF) is not a legal entity, but functions as a segregated pool of funds and therefore
under the Income Tax Act, the tax treatment is similar to that of a non-incorporated entity. In previous years the SHIF
has applied to the Ministry of Finance and Economic Affairs for waiver of corporation and withholding taxes and in
2006 the Ministry communicated to the SHIF that the waiver was granted for 2003 to 2007.

The Ministry also informed the SHIF that a decision had been taken to amend the Income Tax Act Cap 73, to exempt
from tax, funds provided by Government and used for purposes of promoting the development of sectors of the
economy.  As a result no corporation tax has been calculated for the current year.

NOTE: 3 CASH AND SHORT TERM DEPOSITS

   2014    2013
      $       $

Cash 446,190 1,240,270
Short term deposits 5,006,875 4,847,080

5,453,065 6,087,350

Short term deposits consist primarily of fixed deposits with interest rates at 1.00% to 3.75% (2013: 1.60%-3.75%) per
annum. These deposits have a maturity period of ninety days or less.
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SMALL HOTELS INVESTMENT FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Expressed in Barbados Dollars)

Page 9 of 13

NOTE: 4 LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET

Effective since October 1, 2002 members of the SHBI in good standing and who qualify under the by-laws and
regulations of the SHBI have been eligible to receive loans. The maximum loan size allowed is the lower of
$5,600,000 and 15% of the initial capitalisation of the Fund. The minimum loan size shall be limited to $50,000.
Loans shall not be used to purchase land, buildings or other real estate except where such real estate is to be used
for the member's productive purpose.  All loans shall be repaid within a ten (10) year period which includes a five (5)
year moratorium on interest and principal payments.  Security on loans is by way of first or second legal mortgage.

Loans include interest capitalised during the moratorium period.

The loans receivable bear interest at 5% per annum (2013: 5% per annum).  The loans are subject to the moratorium
of interest and principal payments for a period of five (5) years.

The maturity structure of loans receivable, gross, is:
   2014    2013
      $       $

Under 1 year 224,814 224,814
1 - 5 years 1,554,663 7,007,257
Over 5 years 34,604,666 28,941,828

Total loans receivable, gross, carried forward 36,384,143 36,173,899

Less loan loss provision:
Balance as at January 1 3,452,482 3,315,015
Increase in provision - 137,467

Balance as at December 31 3,452,482 3,452,482

Total loans receivable, net 32,931,661 32,721,417

In the previous years the Fund made a provision for loan loss for Villa Investments Inc., Tourism Services Ltd and
WSB Ltd.  This was based on their non-accrual status and their inability to honour their current obligations.

NOTE: 5 MANAGEMENT FEES

Management fees are due to Enterprise Growth Fund Limited and are based on a contractual percentage of the
average gross assets of the fund outstanding.  Included in Accounts Payable are Management Fees of $287,296 and
$283,982 as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 respectively.

NOTE: 6 COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, there were no outstanding commitments (2013 - $NIL).
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NOTE: 7 LOAN PAYABLE

The original amount of the loan from Government was $30 million. However $2 million advanced to SHBI was
authorised for treatment as a Grant by Government thereby effecting a reduction in the loan payable to $28 million.

The loan is unsecured and bears interest of 2.5% per annum.  A moratorium on both principal advanced for loan
financing and interest accrued thereon had been granted for a period of five (5) years, commencing September 1,
2005. Scheduled monthly payments of both principal and interest were expected to commence on December 31,
2010, payable over a period of five (5) years, in ten (10) equal, semi-annual installments of $2.8 million together with
any interest accrued thereon, on June 30th and December 31st of each year.

Payments have not been made in accordance with the agreement and therefore the loan is in default and has
become fully payable.

NOTE: 8 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

This consists of deposits held with a maturity period exceeding 90 days. These deposits currently carry interest rates
of 2.00% to 3.00% (2013: 2.60% - 3.75%) per annum respectively.

NOTE: 9 CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

The original contribution by Government to the Fund was $5 million. Of this amount, $1,240,080 was disbursed to
SHBI. The Investment Committee of SHIF resolved on November 4, 2002 to treat all advances to the SHBI as of
September 30, 2002 (previously loans) as grants and to cancel all prior related balances and interest accrued.
Accordingly, the balance of the capital contribution was reduced to $3,759,920.

During the year, no funds were received (2013: $3.65M) from the Government of Barbados in order to finance the
lending activities of the Small Hotels Refurbishment Scheme. A grant of $196,000 to Debdor Co. Ltd was approved in
2013, of which $186,581 was disbursed in 2013 and the balance in 2014.Capital contribution at December 31, 2014
was $12,814,920.

NOTE: 10 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)   Introduction and Overview
The Fund has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Market Risk
- Operational Risk

This note presents information about the Fund's exposure to each of the above risks, the objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk and the management of the capital.
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NOTE: 10 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT, cont'd

Risk Management Framework
The Investment Committee has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Fund's risk
management framework.  Risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Fund, in order to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and the adherence to limits.
These policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services
offered.
(b)   Credit Risk
Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Fund's loan securities.

Loans Receivable
The Fund's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. A loan
provisioning policy has been implemented and all clients are categorized according to their credit risk profile.  These
assessments are used in order to determine the extent of provisions to be made for the financial year.

Management of Credit Risk
Management has responsibility for the management of credit risk in accordance with the Fund's established policies.

Exposure to Credit Risk
The carrying amount of the financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.  The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date was:

   2014     2013
      $       $

Loans receivable 32,931,662 32,721,417
Cash & short term deposits 5,453,065 6,087,350
Short term investments 3,344,375 2,807,547
Total 41,729,102 41,616,314

Carrying Amount

Impaired Loans and Securities
Impaired loans and securities are loans and securities for which management determines that it is probable that it will
be unable to collect all principal and interest due according to the contractual terms of the loans/securities
agreement(s).

Past Due but not Impaired Loans
These consist of loans and securities where contractual interest or principal payments are past due but management
believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of security/collateral available and/or the stage of
collection of amounts owed as classified as Past Due but not Impaired.

Allowances for Impairment
Management monitors the aging and credit quality of each loan facility extended through the monthly preparation of a
delinquency report. Allowances are established on a per loan basis as set in the Fund's Loan Provisioning Policy.

Concentration of Credit Risk
Concentration of credit risk exists if a number of clients are engaged in similar activities or are located in the same
industry sector or have similar economic characteristics such that their ability to meet contractual obligations would
be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.  Concentration of credit risk indicates the
relative sensitivity of the Fund's performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location.
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NOTE: 10 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT, cont'd

(b)  Credit Risk, cont'd

Write-off Policy
The Fund writes off a loan/security balance (and any related allowances for impairment) when it determines that the
loan/security is uncollectible. This determination is reached after considering information such as the occurrence of
significant changes in the borrower's/issuer's financial position such that the borrower/issuer can no longer pay the
obligation, or that proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure.

The Fund holds collateral against loans receivable in the form of mortgage debentures over property, bills of sale
and/or personal or government guarantees.

(c)   Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations of its financial liabilities.

Management of Liquidity Risk
Management's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Fund's reputation.

(d)   Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
will affect the Fund's income or the value of its holding of financial instruments.  The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return on risk.

Market risk encompasses liquidity risk and price risk, both of which arise in the normal course of business. Liquidity
risk is the risk that the Fund may be unable to meet a financial commitment to a customer or creditor when due. Price
risk is the risk to earnings that arises from changes in interest rates, commodity prices and their implied volatilities.

Management of Market Risk
Market risks are measured in accordance with established standards.

(e)   Currency Risk
The Fund had no significant currency risk at the end of the financial year.

(f)   Capital Management Policy
The Investment Committee's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Investment Committee's
approach to capital management during the year.

(g)   Exposure to Interest Rate Risk
The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash
flows or fair values of financial instruments because of a change in market interest rates.

The Fund's exposure to interest rate risk is disclosed in Note 3 and 8.
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NOTE: 10 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT, cont'd

(h)   Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes, associated with the Fund's
processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity
risks such as those from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour.
Operational risks arise from all of the Fund's operations and are faced by all business entities.

The objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of the financial losses and damage to the
Fund's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is delegated
to the management of the Fund.

Financial Income and Expenses
     2014     2013

      $       $
Interest income on unimpaired held-to maturity investments 951,529 880,556
Interest income on bank deposits 235,460 271,055
Financial Income 1,186,989 1,151,611

Financial Expenses 866,420 845,159

Net Finance Costs 320,569 306,452

NOTE: 11 FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Fund's activity as a provider of financing to assist small hotels with marketing, management, procurement of joint
services and refurbishment is one which involves transactions, which are speculative in nature.  Financial instruments
consist of cash and short term deposits, loans receivable, interest receivable, loan payable, interest payable and
accounts payable.

Fair Value
Fair value amounts represent estimates of the consideration that would currently be agreed between knowledgeable,
willing parties who are under no compulsion to act and is best evidenced by a quoted market value, if one exists. The
company's financial instruments are not traded on a formal market. The fair values of these instruments are
considered to approximate their book values.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Trustees of Tourism Loan Fund 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tourism Loan Fund, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as of December 31, 2014, the statement of profit or loss, changes in general 
fund and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Tourism Loan Fund as at December 31, 2014, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Chartered Accountants 
Bridgetown, Barbados  
May 27, 2015 
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TOURISM LOAN FUND
Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended December 31, 2014 
with comparative figures for 2013 

(Expressed in Barbados Dollars)

Notes 2014 2013

Income 
Interest on short term investments $ 120,792 171,690
Interest on loans 2,005,464 1,071,319

Total income 2,126,256 1,243,009

Expenses 
Management fees 9 873,179 860,557
Professional fees 32,048 23,110
Provision for loan losses 9,118 -
Trustees fees 3,000 1,200
Bank charges 195 3

Total expenses 917,540 884,870

Net profit $ 1,208,716 358,139

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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TOURISM LOAN FUND 
Statement of Changes in General Fund 

For the year ended December 31, 2014 
with comparative figures for 2013 

(Expressed in Barbados Dollars)

General Accumulated 
Fund Earnings Total 

Balances at December 31, 2012 $ 30,000,000 3,512,408 33,512,408

Net income for the year - 358,139 358,139

Balances at December 31, 2013 $ 30,000,000 3,870,547 33,870,547

Net income for the year - 1,208,716 1,208,716

Balances at December 31, 2014 $ 30,000,000 5,079,263 35,079,263

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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TOURISM LOAN FUND 
Statement of Changes in General Fund 

For the year ended December 31, 2014 
with comparative figures for 2013 

(Expressed in Barbados Dollars)
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TOURISM LOAN FUND
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended December 31, 2014 
with comparative figures for 2013 

(Expressed in Barbados Dollars) 

2014 2013 

Operating activities
Net income $ 1,208,716 358,139

Adjustments for:
Provision for loan losses 9,118 - 
Interest income (2,126,256) (1,243,009)
Interest received 1,569,918 1,236,452

Operating profit before working capital changes 661,495 351,582

Loans advanced (2,009,903) (1,805,366)
Loans repaid 843,979 671,324
Increase in accounts payable 5,259 225
Increase (decrease) in due to related party 3,195 (10,802)
Decrease (increase) in due from related party 13,801 (13,801) 

Net cash used in operating activities (482,173) (806,838)

Investing activities
Purchase of short term investments – net (101,768) (107,875)

Net cash used in investing activities (101,768) (107,875)

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year (583,941) (914,713)

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 2,072,802 2,987,515

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 1,488,861 2,072,802

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TOURISM LOAN FUND 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2014 

(Expressed in Barbados Dollars)

1. Background

The Tourism Loan Fund (“the Fund”) was established pursuant to:

(i) a Trust Deed dated January 26, 2001 between the Central Bank of Barbados and the Trustees 
and;

(ii) a Management Agreement dated January 26, 2001 between the Trustees and Enterprise 
Growth Fund Limited (“the Fund Manager” or “EGFL”). 

Under the terms of the Trust Deed, the Central Bank of Barbados agreed to transfer $30 million to the 
Trustees for the purpose of establishing the Tourism Loan Fund.   

The Fund is not a legal entity but functions as a segregated pool of funds and is managed by 
Enterprise Growth Fund Limited (the “Fund Manager” or “EGFL”). The principal place of business is 
Enterprise Growth Fund Limited, “Westgate”, Monteith Gardens Barbarees Hill, St. Michael. The 
Investment Committee and the Board of Directors of EGFL are ultimately responsible for the approval 
and ratification of loans issued by the Fund.

These financial statements were approved by the Trustees of the Fund on May 27, 2015.

2. Basis of Preparation

1 Statement of compliance 

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB).   

2 Basis of measurement 

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments 
classified as available-for-sale investments.

(c) Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Barbados dollars, which is the Fund’s functional currency. 
These values have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 
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TOURISM LOAN FUND 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2014 

(Expressed in Barbados Dollars)
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classified as available-for-sale investments.

(c) Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Barbados dollars, which is the Fund’s functional currency. 
These values have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 
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2. Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

The Fund makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Provision for loan losses 

The provision for loan losses is estimated using discounted cash flow analysis. The Fund uses its 
judgment to select assumptions that reflect the expected timing and amount of future payments by 
customers and where applicable the expected net proceeds on realization of security.  

(ii) Fair market value of investments 

Fair value of a financial asset or liability is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal, or in its 
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Fund has access at the measurement date.   
The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. 

The Fund values instruments carried at fair value using quoted market prices, where available. 
Quoted market prices represent a Level 1 valuation. When quoted market prices are not available, 
the Fund maximizes the use of observable inputs within valuation models. When all significant 
inputs are observable, the valuation is classified as Level 2. Valuations that require the significant 
use of unobservable inputs are considered Level 3. 
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Fund have been applied consistently to all
periods presented in these financial statements.

(a) Revenue recognition

Interest on deposits
Interest income on deposits represents interest earned on contractual agreements with financial
institutions at agreed rates of interest.

Income from loans
Income from loans is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

All interest accrued during the period has been recorded as income in the financial statements.
Provisions for bad debts are recorded for clients in non-accrual status where there is evidence to
support the fact that the loan is impaired.

(b) Short term Investments

Short term investments comprising term deposits are categorised as held to maturity and are carried at
cost.

(c) Provision for loan losses

Specific provisions are made on individual loans, where management is of the opinion that collection is
doubtful.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Fund have been applied consistently to all
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(a) Revenue recognition

Interest on deposits
Interest income on deposits represents interest earned on contractual agreements with financial
institutions at agreed rates of interest.

Income from loans
Income from loans is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

All interest accrued during the period has been recorded as income in the financial statements.
Provisions for bad debts are recorded for clients in non-accrual status where there is evidence to
support the fact that the loan is impaired.

(b) Short term Investments

Short term investments comprising term deposits are categorised as held to maturity and are carried at
cost.

(c) Provision for loan losses

Specific provisions are made on individual loans, where management is of the opinion that collection is
doubtful.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Fund’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment.  If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.  Impairment losses are recognized in the Statement of Loss.

(e) Related parties

Parties are considered related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions.  Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.  Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.
Transactions between related parties are based on terms similar to those offered to non-related
parties.

3. Forthcoming new standards or amendment requirements:

Standards and interpretations adopted

There were no new standards and amendments of standards adopted during the year ended
December 31, 2014.

New Standards and interpretations not yet adopted

IFRS 7 – Financial Instrument Disclosures (Amendments), effective September 30, 2014
IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments Classification and Measurement, effective January 1, 2018
IFRS 15 – Revenue Contracts with Customers, effective January 1, 2017
IAS 24 – Related Party Disclosures, effective July 1, 2014
IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation, effective January 1, 2015
IAS 39 – Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, effective January 1, 2014
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4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and call and fixed deposits with original maturity
dates of 90 days or less:

2014 2013 

Cash $ 610,450 1,223,075
Short term deposits 878,410 849,727

$ 1,488,860 2,072,802

The applicable interest rates for the short term fixed deposits range from 1.85% - 3.25% (2013: 2.3% -
4.0%).

5. Short Term Investments

These are held to maturity investments with a maturity period of 6 months.  At the balance sheet date
the effective interest rate range was 1.85% per annum (2013: 4.0% per annum).  Short term
investments with original maturity dates of 90 days or less have been classified as cash equivalents.

6. Loans Receivable

The Fund’s loans are categorised as originating loans and are carried at amortized cost.  These loans
are secured by mortgage debentures and personal guarantees, and are repayable between eight to
eleven years. Interest rates were between 6.5% and 10.5% at the end of 2014 (2013: 6.5% and
10.5%).

A loan is considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that the Fund will not be able to 
collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan.  The amount of the provision is 
the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount, being the present value of 
expected cash flows, including amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral, discounted based 
on the interest rate at inception of the loan.  

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance and subsequent recoveries 
are credited to the provision for loan losses in the Statement of Profit.  The Fund Manager is entitled to 
receive an incentive payment when the Fund recovers any principal and interest in respect of any loan 
which may be classified as uncollectible and/or may have been written off the books of the Fund.
Such an incentive payment shall be three percent (3%) on the net amounts recovered. 
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4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and call and fixed deposits with original maturity
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The applicable interest rates for the short term fixed deposits range from 1.85% - 3.25% (2013: 2.3% -
4.0%).

5. Short Term Investments

These are held to maturity investments with a maturity period of 6 months.  At the balance sheet date
the effective interest rate range was 1.85% per annum (2013: 4.0% per annum).  Short term
investments with original maturity dates of 90 days or less have been classified as cash equivalents.

6. Loans Receivable

The Fund’s loans are categorised as originating loans and are carried at amortized cost.  These loans
are secured by mortgage debentures and personal guarantees, and are repayable between eight to
eleven years. Interest rates were between 6.5% and 10.5% at the end of 2014 (2013: 6.5% and
10.5%).

A loan is considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that the Fund will not be able to 
collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan.  The amount of the provision is 
the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount, being the present value of 
expected cash flows, including amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral, discounted based 
on the interest rate at inception of the loan.  

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance and subsequent recoveries 
are credited to the provision for loan losses in the Statement of Profit.  The Fund Manager is entitled to 
receive an incentive payment when the Fund recovers any principal and interest in respect of any loan 
which may be classified as uncollectible and/or may have been written off the books of the Fund.
Such an incentive payment shall be three percent (3%) on the net amounts recovered. 
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6. Loans Receivable, (continued)

At December 31, 2014 the maturity profile of loans is as follows:

Years to maturity 
Up to One to Over Total Total 

1 yr 5 yrs 5 Yrs 2014 2013 

Business Sector $  3,849,937  2,624,667 24,946,379 31,420,983 30,255,059 

Less allowance for loan losses (2,684,684)  (2,675,566) 

$  28,736,299  27,579,493

7. Corporation Tax

Corporation tax has not been provided for in these financial statements since the Fund is exempt from
the payment of corporation tax in accordance with Section 56 of the Central Bank of Barbados Act,
Cap. 323C.

8. Capital Contribution
2014 2013

Capital contribution $ 30,000,000  30,000,000 

The capital contribution represents the original capital of the Fund provided by the Central Bank of 
Barbados. 

9. Due to Related Party

Due to related party consists mainly of management fees charged during the course of the financial
year in accordance with the provisions of separate agreements between Enterprise Growth Fund
Limited (EGFL) and the Trustees of the Fund, using contractual rates.

Amounts included in due to related party represent outstanding management fees due to EGFL at
year-end of $218,682 (2013: $215,487).

These related party transactions are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions only if those terms can be substantiated. The amounts due to Enterprise Growth Fund
Limited are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and call and fixed deposits with original maturity
dates of 90 days or less:

2014 2013 

Cash $ 610,450 1,223,075
Short term deposits 878,410 849,727

$ 1,488,860 2,072,802

The applicable interest rates for the short term fixed deposits range from 1.85% - 3.25% (2013: 2.3% -
4.0%).

5. Short Term Investments

These are held to maturity investments with a maturity period of 6 months.  At the balance sheet date
the effective interest rate range was 1.85% per annum (2013: 4.0% per annum).  Short term
investments with original maturity dates of 90 days or less have been classified as cash equivalents.

6. Loans Receivable

The Fund’s loans are categorised as originating loans and are carried at amortized cost.  These loans
are secured by mortgage debentures and personal guarantees, and are repayable between eight to
eleven years. Interest rates were between 6.5% and 10.5% at the end of 2014 (2013: 6.5% and
10.5%).

A loan is considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that the Fund will not be able to 
collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan.  The amount of the provision is 
the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount, being the present value of 
expected cash flows, including amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral, discounted based 
on the interest rate at inception of the loan.  

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance and subsequent recoveries 
are credited to the provision for loan losses in the Statement of Profit.  The Fund Manager is entitled to 
receive an incentive payment when the Fund recovers any principal and interest in respect of any loan 
which may be classified as uncollectible and/or may have been written off the books of the Fund.
Such an incentive payment shall be three percent (3%) on the net amounts recovered. 
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10. Commitments

Loan commitments in respect of undisbursed loans at December 31, 2014 were $520,582 (2013:
$2,859,661).

11. Post Balance Sheet Events

Subsequent to the reporting date, the decision was made by the Trustees to change the year-end of
the Fund to March 31. This will be effected from March 2016.

12. Financial Risk Management

Introduction and overview
The Fund has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

 credit risk

 liquidity risk

 market risk

 operational risk

This note presents information about the Fund’s exposure to each of the above risks, the objectives, 
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk and the management of capital. 

Risk Management Framework 
The Trustees of the Fund have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Fund’s 
risk management framework.  Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the 
risks faced by the Fund, in order to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and the 
adherence to limits.  These policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market 
conditions, products and services offered. 

Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a borrower or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Fund’s loans and interest receivable and its 
investments. 
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10. Commitments

Loan commitments in respect of undisbursed loans at December 31, 2014 were $520,582 (2013:
$2,859,661).

11. Post Balance Sheet Events

Subsequent to the reporting date, the decision was made by the Trustees to change the year-end of
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policies and processes for measuring and managing risk and the management of capital. 

Risk Management Framework 
The Trustees of the Fund have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Fund’s 
risk management framework.  Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the 
risks faced by the Fund, in order to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and the 
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investments. 
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12. Financial Risk Management, (continued)

Loans receivable
The Fund’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
borrower.  A loan provisioning policy has been implemented and all borrowers are categorized
according to their credit risk profile.  These assessments, which involve ascertaining the clients’ ability
to service their existing liabilities as well as the value of their securitised assets, are used in order to
determine the extent of credit risk.

Management of credit risk
The Fund employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk relating to loans receivable,
by the taking of security whose value approximates to the quantum of funds advanced. The principal
collateral types for loans are:

 Mortgages over residential/commercial properties
 Charges over business assets/bill of sale
 Personal guarantees
 Hypothecation of deposit balances

Financial investments 
The Fund limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in reputable financial institutions and 
Government of Barbados securities. Government securities are generally invested over a period longer 
that than of term deposits with other financial institutions. The Fund has documented investment 
policies in place which act as a guide to the management of credit risk on investments.

Exposure to credit risk 
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.  The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was: 

Carrying Amount 

2014 2013

Loans receivable $ 28,736,299 27,579,493
Short term investments 4,390,831 4,289,063

Total $ 33,127,130 31,868,556
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11. Financial Risk Management, (continued)

Credit quality by class of financial assets

Loans Receivable
The credit quality of loans and advances is managed though the prudent underwriting principles
established by management.

Cash and balances with financial institutions
The credit quality of financial institutions holding the Fund’s cash resources is assessed by the level of
credit worthiness and by comparison to other financial institutions. The Fund only places its cash
resources with reputable financial institutions.

The tables below show the credit quality analysis of financial assets:

2014

Neither Past due Past due but Individually 
Nor impaired not impaired Impaired Total 

Cash Resources $ 1,488,861 - - 1,488,861 
Financial investments: 
Held to maturity 4,390,831 - - 4,390,831 
Loans receivable  6,281,587 13,821,068 11,318,328 31,420,983 

12,161,279 13,821,068 11,318,328 37,300,675 

2013

Neither Past due Past due but Individually 
Nor impaired not impaired Impaired Total 

Cash resources $ 2,072,802 - - 2,072,802 
Financial investments: 
Held to maturity 4,289,063 - - 4,289,063 
Loans receivable 10,262,769 12,628,108  7,364,182 30,255,059 

16,624,634 12,628,108 7,364,182  36,616,924 
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11. Financial Risk Management, (continued)

Credit quality by class of financial assets

Loans Receivable
The credit quality of loans and advances is managed though the prudent underwriting principles
established by management.

Cash and balances with financial institutions
The credit quality of financial institutions holding the Fund’s cash resources is assessed by the level of
credit worthiness and by comparison to other financial institutions. The Fund only places its cash
resources with reputable financial institutions.

The tables below show the credit quality analysis of financial assets:

2014

Neither Past due Past due but Individually 
Nor impaired not impaired Impaired Total 

Cash Resources $ 1,488,861 - - 1,488,861 
Financial investments: 
Held to maturity 4,390,831 - - 4,390,831 
Loans receivable  6,281,587 13,821,068 11,318,328 31,420,983 

12,161,279 13,821,068 11,318,328 37,300,675 

2013

Neither Past due Past due but Individually 
Nor impaired not impaired Impaired Total 

Cash resources $ 2,072,802 - - 2,072,802 
Financial investments: 
Held to maturity 4,289,063 - - 4,289,063 
Loans receivable 10,262,769 12,628,108  7,364,182 30,255,059 

16,624,634 12,628,108 7,364,182  36,616,924 
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11. Financial Risk Management, (continued)

Impairment Assessment 

Impaired loans and securities 
Impaired loans and securities are loans and securities for which management determines that it is 
probable that it will be unable to collect all principal and interest due according to the contractual terms 
of the loans/securities agreement(s). 

Past due but not impaired loans 
These comprise loans and securities where contractual interest or principal payments are past due but 
management believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of security/collateral 
available and/or the stage of collection of amounts owed. 

Allowances for impairment 
Management monitors the aging and credit quality of each loan facility extended through the monthly 
preparation of a delinquency report. Allowances are established on a per loan basis as set in the 
Company’s Loan Provisioning Policy.

Concentration of credit risk 
Concentration of credit risk exists if a number of borrowers are engaged in similar activities or are 
located in the same industry sector or have similar economic characteristics such that their ability to 
meet contractual obligations would be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other 
conditions.  Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance 
to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location.  Management does not believe 
that the concentration is unusual or provides undue risks. 

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from its financial 
liabilities. 

Management of Liquidity Risk 
Management’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Fund’s reputation. This has been facilitated by 
using a computerised management system which tracks the quantum of funds available for lending 
and other expenditure. 

Analysis of financial liabilities  
The financial liabilities of the Fund, based on their earliest possible contractual maturity, are due within 
30 days (2013 – 30 days). 
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11. Financial Risk Management, (continued)

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Fund’s income or the value of its holding of financial instruments.  The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on investment.

Management of Market Risk
Frequent reviews and monitoring of cash resources are conducted by management in order to
minimize instances of market risk in accordance with the Fund’s Short Term Investment Policy. Further
considerations are made relating to the level of concentration of resources in financial institutions.

Exposure to currency risk
Currency risk is the potential risk of loss from fluctuating foreign exchange rates when an investor has
exposure to foreign currency or in foreign-currency-traded investments. The Fund had no significant
exposure to currency risk at the end of the financial year.

Exposure to interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk of loss from the fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of
financial instruments because of a change in market interest rates. It arises when there is a mismatch
between the interest-bearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities, which are subject to interest rate
adjustments, within a specified period.

An interest rate sensitivity analysis was performed to determine the impact on total loss of reasonable
possible changes in interest rates prevailing at December 31, 2014, with all other variables held
constant. The impact is illustrated and shown in the table below:

Increase/(decrease) of 100 bps 2014 2013

Impact on comprehensive income +100 bps $ 200,940 157,774 
Impact on comprehensive income – 100 bps (200,940) (157,774) 



169

17

TOURISM LOAN FUND 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2014 

(Expressed in Barbados Dollars) 

11. Financial Risk Management, (continued)

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Fund’s income or the value of its holding of financial instruments.  The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on investment.

Management of Market Risk
Frequent reviews and monitoring of cash resources are conducted by management in order to
minimize instances of market risk in accordance with the Fund’s Short Term Investment Policy. Further
considerations are made relating to the level of concentration of resources in financial institutions.

Exposure to currency risk
Currency risk is the potential risk of loss from fluctuating foreign exchange rates when an investor has
exposure to foreign currency or in foreign-currency-traded investments. The Fund had no significant
exposure to currency risk at the end of the financial year.

Exposure to interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk of loss from the fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of
financial instruments because of a change in market interest rates. It arises when there is a mismatch
between the interest-bearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities, which are subject to interest rate
adjustments, within a specified period.
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constant. The impact is illustrated and shown in the table below:
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Impact on comprehensive income – 100 bps (200,940) (157,774) 
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11. Financial Risk Management, (continued)

Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes, associated
with the Fund’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other
than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour.  Operational risks arise from all of the Fund’s
operations and are faced by all business entities.

The objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and
damage to the Fund’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that
restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational
risk is delegated to the trustees of the Fund. Key policies and procedures used in managing operating
risk involve segregation of duties, delegation of authority and financial and managerial reporting.
Mitigation of operating risk is supported by a well defined organisational structure that segregates
operational and administrative functions. Additionally, quarterly reviews are undertaken by the trustees
of the Fund.

Financial income

2014 2013

Interest income on loans $ 2,005,464 1,071,319
Interest income on cash and cash equivalents 120,792 171,690

Financial income $ 2,126,256 1,243,009

Financial expenses (9,118) - 

Net financial income $ 2,117,138 1,243,009 
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12. Fair values disclosure of financial instruments

Fair value amounts represent the approximate values at which financial instruments could be 
exchanged in current transactions between willing parties.  There is no available trading market for 
these financial instruments and therefore, it is not possible to determine independently the estimated 
fair values.  The fair values of financial instruments are considered to approximate their book values. 

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the Statement 
of Financial Position are as follows: 

2014 2014 2013 2013
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
Amount Value Amount Value 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,488,861 1,488,861 2,072,802 2,072,802
Short term investments 4,390,831 4,390,831 4,289,062 4,289,062
Loans receivable, net 28,736,299 28,736,299 27,579,493 30,255,059
Interest receivable 704,778 704,778 148,440 148,440
Accounts payable (22,825) (22,825) (17,565) (17,565)
Due to related party (218,682) (218,682) (215,487) (215,487)
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12. Fair value disclosure of financial instruments, (Continued)

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets of liabilities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
statement of financial position date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in Level 1.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value 
are observable, either directly or indirectly 

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques 
maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity 
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the 
instrument is included in Level 2. 

Level 3:   techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that 
are not based on observable market data. 

 If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is 
included in Level 3. 

The following table presents the Fund’s financial instruments that are measured at fair value: 

 Level 3 

2014  2013

Loans receivable, net $ 28,736,299 27,579,493 
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TOURISM LOAN FUND 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2014 

(Expressed in Barbados Dollars) 

13. Capital Management Policy

Management’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.  There were no changes in
management’s approach to capital management during the year.

14. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures were restated to conform with the current year’s presentation in
accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
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KPMG, a Barbados partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of 
Independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”) a Swiss entity. 

KPMG 
Hastings 
Christ Church, BB 15154 
Barbados 

P. O. Box 690C 
Bridgetown, Barbados 

Telephone (246) 434 3900 
Fax (246) 427 7123 
e-Mail info@kpmg.bb 

Auditors' Report to the Trustees of the Tourism Loan Fund 

In connection with our examination of the financial statements of the Tourism Loan Fund for the year 
ended December 31, 2014 we ascertained that the relevant guidelines of the Policy and Operations 
Statement have been complied with.  Our examination was made in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing and included such tests of accounting and other records, as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

We report that in our opinion, for the year ended December 31, 2014: 

(1) the Manager of the Tourism Loan Fund in respect of the Policy and Operations Statement: 

(A) has complied with the following guidelines: 

Section 3 (2) Loan Repayment Periods 

Section 3 (3) Moratoria 

Section 3 (4) Interest Rates 

Section 4  Evaluation and Approval Procedures 
The Investment Committee fulfills the role of the Portfolio 
Investment Committee as stipulated in Section 7. 

Section 5 Collateral and Security for Loans 

Section 6 Loan Write-Offs and Recovery Procedures 
No write-offs of loans were made during the year ended 
December 31, 2014. 

Section 7 Financial and Operational Policies 

Section 8 (i) Management and Reporting in that: 
The audited financial statements will be submitted within one 
hundred and twenty days following the year-end.

Section 8 (ii) The Manager of the Tourism Loan Fund shall provide to the 
Trustees summary quarterly reports and semi-annual
reviews of all loans in the Fund’s portfolio.
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(B) has not complied with the following guidelines: 
 

Section 2  Eligibility and Nature of Projects 
 A loan has been granted to repay the existing debt owing to 

third party creditors of the borrowers. 
 
 

Section 3 (5) Loan Repayments 
 Some clients have not made the required repayments of 

principal and interest on a monthly basis. 
 

 
Section 3 (7)  Loan Restrictions  

 The amalgamation of two loans has resulted in a loan 
balance which in excess of the stipulated maximum loan size 
for any one loan of 15% of the total capitalization of the 
Fund.  

 
 

(2) During the course of our examination, the following guidelines were not applicable: 
 

Section 9  Relations with the Central Bank of Barbados 
A request was not made by the Central Bank of Barbados for 
relevant information, documentation, and accounting records 
pertaining to loans in the Tourism Loan Fund’s portfolio. 

 
 

Section 10 Conflicts of Interest 
  There were no loans granted to enterprises in which the 

Enterprise Growth Fund Limited, as manager, or its directors 
or officers had an interest. As such there was no need for 
disclosure in the presentation of a loan proposal. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
Chartered Accountants 
Bridgetown, Barbados 
May 27, 2015 
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